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Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms used under
Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion
and Analysis, Biographical Details of Directors, Corporate Governance
Report, Report of the Directors and Five-Year Financial Summary shall

have the respective meanings set out below.

“2017 AGM”
[—E-tFBRRBEFAE]

“2018 AGM”
[T - N\FERBFKE]

“AGM(s)’
[ERBF RS

“Articles of Association”

[AABERAA

“associate(s)”

[BEAl

“Audit Committee”
[BZZE g

“Board”
=54

“CEQ” or “Chief Executive Officer”

[BEFEHTE

“CFQO” or “Chief Financial Officer”
BEVBE

“CG Code”
[xERTAl

“Chairman”

[E£F]

“close associate(s)”
[EEBEAL]

“Co-CEQ” or “Co-Chief Executive
Officer”
[ B 51T BUAB &L

BRXEARB IR
AmENN EFEZEEHB

THARAK EBE
REE AR

T EEERENDFYBHREMBAR

EEBLTHRENESERE -

AGM held on Monday, 16 October 2017

RZZB—tF+A+RBE(

EP)BTNRRBFRE

AGM to be held on Thursday, 25 October 2018
BRZZFE-N\F+AZTHRB(EHOBIHNRRBFRE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARABERBFRE

articles of association of the Company as amended, supplemented or

otherwise modified from time
RAR 2 HEBERMEA (K

to time
TSR] BHHBITIEIE)

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

AEEEMARAUBETHEE

audit committee of the Board
EEeERZED

board of Directors

BExg

chief executive officer of the Company

ARBZERHITE

chief financial officer of the Company

ARRAZERMBE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
AR BB 8+ U BT 2 1 X E R S A

chairman of the Board

EXTIR

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
BER EmRAMETRRE

Co-CEO

BT AR



“Company”

[ A7

“Company Secretary” or “Secretary”

[RAME K E]

“controlling shareholder(s)”

M2 B RR

“COQ” or “Chief Operating Officer”

BRZER

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“EGM(s)”
[BRHREFRIAE ]

ESGY
R - & RER]

“Executive Director(s)” or “ED(s)”

[RITES]

“Financial Statements”

[87 7% ¥ 5% |

HGroup!!
[R&EE]

“HKFRS(s)”

(BB PG 2R

"HKS’
[

“Hong Kong”
(&5
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Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the issued Shares of
which are listed and traded on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock

code: 1470)
BBEBRERERAR

company secretary of the Company

KRB ZRAIME

—HARFAEREEMALZAERAA > HE
BT ER LW R 5 (AR 1470)

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmARRAPTETHRE

chief operating officer of the Company

ARRZERLEER

director(s) of the Company

RRAPES

extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company

ARRBERFR KRS

environmental, social and governance

RE #HEahEA

executive Director(s)

HITES

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

AEBEXRFEZEAMBRR

the Company and its subsidiaries

AR B R E M E R A

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants

BEGRIEN R G M2 BB RE LR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BRAERR

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

FEEERAITRE
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“Independent Auditors”

[ 18 37 7% 2L |
“Independent Non-executive
Director(s)” or “INED(s)”
(B IFRITEE]

“Listing Rules”
[ Em R Al
“Model Code”

[z =r Rl

“Nomination Committee”

R2ZEel
“PRC” or “China”

[F ]
“Register of Members”
[ P& 2R 42 fift ]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FMEZEe]

“RMB”
TAR®]

“SFO”
[7& 7 & & 15 ) ]

“Share(s)”
[t ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A& =]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 22 FFr

independent auditors of the Company

ZN/NEI bRV 3 4T
independent non-executive Director(s)
BIUFRTES

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BRI ARHIEI 2 ES LR (TR B BTELE)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAMSE TS LT BRTAZEEETERIINFESTL

nomination committee of the Board

ExeRAZBE

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual report,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

FEARKNME BAFHMS  TEEEE BIBITHRERS

register of members of the Company
AARREEM

remuneration committee of the Board

ExEHFMEEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR FBEZAEER

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

EBEDESTIZEE L BAEEA

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AARBRAFEREME00IE T2 ERR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EGESE=PN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBARXGMBRAIAF
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“subsidiary(ies)” has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
[Fff B8 A &1 ¥ HABAEELTHRAIFAETORE

“Vice Chairman” Vice chairman of the Board

(&8l X%l ¥ BFEGEEE

“Year” year ended 30 April 2018

[REE] B BE_Z-)\FOA=TBLEE

“%” per cent. or percentage

[% 13k [B L] B Bk
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Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Meng Bo
Mr. Liu Guoqing (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Liu Jiagiang

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung (Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Hu Jinrui

Audit Committee

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Hu Jinrui

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Guangyin
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael

Nomination Committee

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman)
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
Mr. Hu Jinrui

Mr. Kwok Siu Man, rcis, Fcs

HITES

TR S (AR AR
Ey e
NEERE(BERUBE)

2 h05e 5t &
EmiRE (B EEREEEEE)

BYFHTES

BREaF R4t
ettt

BEREES

BREAF R (L E)
e St

FMWZEES

BEELEE(EE)
mERTE
BREAF &

REZET
FEREE ()

A 8 E

ZBIK X Jt HE Fais, Fes



Mr. Liu Guoging
Mr. Kwok Siu Man

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

As to Hong Kong Laws
P.C. Woo & Co.

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Room 4205, 42th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza

No. 1 Harbour Road
Wan Chai
Hong Kong

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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BB
HBEEZEMEBR

PERIT(BE)BR DA
ERRT(BEB)BERALA
BARTERRAR

FELBEERTARR

&5

TR BB 5
eRESHAKNE
42184205 F

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited EEEFAEELERAA
Room 2103B, 21/F BB

148 Electric Road it A

North Point R IB 14855

Hong Kong 211 2103BE
www.prosperoneintl.com www.prosperoneintl.com
Place of Listing: i

Main Board of the Stock Exchange Bk 22 BT AR

Stock Code % 131X 55

1470 1470

Board Lot BFEEEN

4,000 Shares 4,000 f&
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To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Prosper
One International Holdings
Company Limited, | hereby present
the annual report of the Group for
the Year.

During the Year, the Hong Kong
consumption market showed signs
of recovery, benefiting from a
gradual improvement in the retalil
market, favourable job and income prospects of the local market and
sustained growth in inbound tourism. Driven by the revival of inbound
tourism and an improvement in local consumption demand, Hong Kong
retail sales as well as watches retail rebounded in the Year, and hence,
the Group’s performance in this segment was on its improvement track.

During the Year, a new controlling Shareholder, namely Prosper One
Enterprises Limited (“Prosper One”) has been introduced into the
Company. The Company has successfully completed the change of its
management and encountered new opportunities for development. As
guided by the concepts of our new management and leveraging on its
own competitive edges, the Group expanded its footprints to three major
business segments during the Year, namely high-end fertilizer industry,
international and domestic trade and technical services, which
strengthened the overall competitiveness of the Group. The new
businesses commenced and were conducted smoothly and recorded
profits, thus improving the results of the Group for the Year.

Due to an improvement in economic environment and the
commencement of new businesses, the Group’s net loss for the Year
decreased to HK$20.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$7.5 million as compared to a net loss of approximately HK$27.7
million for the year ended 30 April 2017.

EAH IR

AANEURERE-BEZBRERAAES
REASERAFREZFR -

RAEEE XERTEMHELTHES X
mm%ﬁﬂmM¥&WAma nEss
IREEFBEEE BEEEBMHBHBEER
BN SR o 55 7B DR 1% 318 B B AN i SE B ok I8
m'ﬁE%%YEﬁ&%ﬁ %Fﬁﬁ
BRE MAEBRILEDHHRRING
BEEHE o

RAFEE  KRRBBATHNERERE
—ERBERAATE-D IEFFZKT E
BEEMNERWBRTHOERME T
ERERMNTET BEEBINERE
O AKRERNAEFERREBES HIEH
EX BRBERAESEEMRE=ZKER
B RBATARBNGABTEN - HEB
MRRHLVISERT AN EEANEHE
AEERBEBNE -

HREERENRE  MEREFED A%
BAFEEZFEERLE20288E T
BEE_Z—+tFNAZTHILEFENY
ITEER T ZFEBRLNTSEERET -

0 oo /
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For the Year, our Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$315.5
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$32.3 million from
approximately HK$283.2 million as compared to previous financial year.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately HK$7.5 million or 27.1% from approximately HK$27.7
million for the year ended 30 April 2017 to approximately HK$20.2 million
for the Year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.

China is getting more concerned about pollutions problem, and is
determined to switch its future economic focus towards the low-pollution
industries. As the Chinese government makes greater efforts to promote
environmental protection, it is likely that fertilizers industry integration and
reshuffling will accelerate during the process of backward production
capacity elimination. Hence, the industry concentration will be further
enhanced, resulting in an increase in the market demand for fertilizers
and offering unprecedented opportunities for industry development.

QOver the years, the Chinese government has promoted the concept of
enhancing efficiency through reducing the use of fertilizers. Under this
new trend, the Group takes a bold step towards reform, striving to make
a change. The Group intends to develop and produce effective
compound fertilizers and bacterial biochemical fertilizers. Being added
synergist, release agent and other additives into nitrogenous fertilisers
such as urea, crops can grow better with fewer fertilizers being used. The
Group, in cooperation with the Chinese Academy of Agricultural
Sciences, is developing and producing fertilizers such as biological
fertilizers, zinc humic acid fertilizers and seaweed fertilizers, aiming to
further strengthen its position and enhance its competitiveness, thus
gaining more business opportunities.

RAEE AEERGEXEHI65HE
B BB REENLK2832EEE
TLIEINA323BE BT

RAREBABRGEERBEEZE -2 —+tF
WMA=Z+THIEFERNL27.7EEBTRE D
H7T5H BB L H27TA%E K F [E 1 4720.2
BEETL-

EXZTERMNAFRIRMEMBER

TREEHBERRRSFANEAE BHEA
RARNEERREOEHEZ RIEIGR
EXMRL - BERBEBRRIMK D E#S
Rk HBKRRERNBIED  BRE—
THBEHTEEAALE KMSEXS
TERE-FRA BHESTEHIEHNE
KM BITENERTET AR ARA R
s -

M BREGRICIER  EUFTEET
AEBAEEH  HFRE HEERNE
ERMESIEHMEAEEWIEH - RN 0E
OB - BRI R PR B B AR DA )RR
ARERLIERERNREE  REEDE
EGEF - AEERBATEEMEAE K
RFAZLEEEZYRER - 5 REEHMNESR
RS Bkt — P IBE T E MBI
MEHEN KMESEZHEK-
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Domestic trade focuses on the procurement and sale of chemical raw
materials, which mainly includes the urea business and the coal business.
Currently, our domestic trade is conducted smoothly with satisfactory
results. International trade mainly covers the export of urea, compound
fertilizers, ammonium sulfate, resin coated urea, glucose and other
products, as well as the import of crude glycerin, lithium ore, coal and
other products. Currently, we have successfully expanded our operations
in over ten countries in Asia, America, Australia and Africa. As both
domestic and international macroeconomic conditions have improved,
we shall strive to expand our operations into huge markets, aiming to
create new drivers for future development.

Over the years, the Chinese government is getting more concern about
environmental protection. This creates new opportunities for industries in
relation to environmental friendly materials, environmental friendly
equipment and environmental technology and services. Hence, the
market outlook is promising. Acting in line with the market trend, we shall
strive to develop our technological service, consultation and training while
expanding our commercial information consultation service. As usual, we
shall grasp opportunities when they arise and proactively expand our
operations by leveraging on our core competitiveness.

Domestic demand on new energy is steadily increasing. We are of the
opinion that the Group will benefit from the increase in domestic market
demand through developing our business segment of new energy
material production. Hence, we intend to commence a new business
segment, namely the production of necessary materials for the
manufacture of lithium batteries (including, but not limited to, lithium
carbonate) by recruiting relevant operating teams and cooperating with
other players in the industry, who are independent third parties. Lithium
carbonate is the major material for the manufacture of mobile batteries
which are used in various types of electronic vehicles. By enhancing its
ability in acquiring resources, the Group will focus on developing new
materials and new energy products as well as strengthening its overall
competitiveness, thus creating additional value for our Shareholders.

BRAESZAECTIRHMERBMEE R E
T2RREFHFMERER  BAIFARIE
MoKERE BRESTEEEKRE
EAE MEE HWEEREREZ BERES
EmdOMEHR BB6H BREFEM
#EO - BRICEKRIRAA T M- EMN R
M- FEMNFwE+HREBRRER - BEEEA
BB ZERBERNRTHNNE  BIAHHK
NWAREBEENTS  BRAKRBERITA
HET -

AF ERYRRARELABER  BRREM
B BRREE - BRBRMRBETESRKT
)R RRMIZARERE - RPRZH
B OBEAORBRIMRE  #H - Fl
R RABEEREESRARS - KMAK—
REWEERS FBEFNZLBEFS
TR A T A s -

BARAHHERNERZRRE LA NS
ZORMRBRRBREEFEBRMHNE
B BRAEEEEAMSENFRIERS
o Hi - HAETEBBREHMELE
BEBEEMBUIE=TTTERFEEAIE
MRAEEBEWATEENFOHER -
BREETRNREE REEREELH
BHLHNITEMNF ZFECLANSEEY
BE-AKERRRBRICEREREN &
EEERMME  MRREM RAERRF
h B BEREEEE-

O
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As regards the retail of watches, by understanding customers’ spending
models and habits, the Group is in the process of implementing a new
shopping atmosphere among our shops that are going to open. We are
focusing on the promotion of new store concept and the introduction of
new watch brands and designs so as to stimulate customers’
consumption sentiment. In addition, to strengthen the brand awareness,
the Group has been contributing its resources to TV commercials and
social media platforms and acting as event’s sponsor. With these
measures, the Group believes that although the franchise licences of two
single brands of watches will expire in 2018 and there will be a substantial
decrease in turnover and profit in the short term, we can see sustainable
growth in our business over a certain period of time.

In the current year, all of our management members and staff will strive
to make the Group turn around by leveraging on their own competitive
edges and completing various tasks with unity, thus creating a strong
foundation for the development of operations of the Group. Through
continuous development and expansion, we aim to create better returns
for the Shareholders in the long run.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
dedicated management team and employees for their contributions to
achieve the strategic transformation, seeking for new opportunities for
development. Last but not least, | wish to express my sincere thanks to
our partners, customers and in particular, our Shareholders for their trust
and continuous support.

Meng Guangyin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 July 2018

ERBERTE BRTREFPHNHEEN
BB A8 - N5 B IE 1 AP B % B O O T IS
LPEERHBEDRS WA IR HEE
G BE S 2 R 6K R B KRR ET 0 AR
HEENBMEL I REBmENS
B AEBE-—ERERAEERERIKREF
BRABR UREEEDHERRN AEEE
B BEMMEE - mERENEFEEF
ABEHR - N\F2H AEHARE:

BRANBEARERD  ERBREEE M
MEBHN - BRERRERAIFEER -

SE HMzREREBRRBETIELEE
BHEEY LT—0L BLBAMMTE
¥ BREESNEERR ENMREEXER
TTRENER -BBETHERILIKN RE
RBRRAEF AR R o

AANERRASEE U G EE B K
RETHWELFR SBBBLLSHHN
ERMESFELER &K AABRAEE
B BEP FBIERRREILOHE
B E —BEARNEEET -

TE
= ER
R —_E-N\ELA=TH



E-BEBRZERERAT —FT-N\FEH @

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI mMAMN

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 28 July 2017, Prosper One as purchaser and Tic Tac Investment
Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) as vendor entered into a sale and
purchase agreement and on 4 August 2017, Prosper One and the
Vendor entered into a supplemental agreement to the above agreement
(together, the “SPA”), pursuant to which the Vendor had conditionally
agreed to sell, and Prosper One had conditionally agreed to purchase,
the sale shares (the “Sale Shares”), being a total of 565,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 70.625% of the total issued share capital of
the Company, at an aggregate consideration of HK$534,375,000
(equivalent to HK$0.9458 per Sale Share).

Completion of the SPA (the “Completion”) took place on 15 August
2017. Mr. Meng Guangyin, the sole ultimate beneficial shareholder of
Prosper One has become the ultimate controlling Shareholder of the
Company upon the Completion. Subsequent to the Completion, an
unconditional mandatory cash offer was made to acquire all the issued
Shares (other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by
Prosper One and the parties acting in concert with it) at a price of
HK$0.9458 per Share (the “Offer”), and the Offer was closed on 27
September 2017. Upon the close of the Offer, Prosper One and the
parties acting in concert with it were interested in, held, controlled or
directed an aggregate of 689,940,000 Shares, representing
approximately 86.243% of the total issued Share capital of the Company.

On 20 November 2017, Prosper One entered into a placing agreement
with Changjiang Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited, Aristo Securities
Limited and Ruibang Securities Limited (collectively, the “Placing
Agents”) for the placing of 89,940,000 Shares held by Prosper One at a
placing price of HK$0.90 per Share on a best effort basis to not less than
six placees (the “Placing”). The Company was informed by Prosper One
that 89,940,000 Shares (representing approximately 11.2% of the issued
Shares) had been placed through the Placing Agents to not less than six
placees at the placing price of HK$0.90 per Share. Completion of the
Placing took place on 22 November 2017. None of the placees under the
Placing has become a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company upon completion of the Placing.
Immediately after the completion of the Placing, Prosper One and the
parties acting in concert with it have been interested in 600,000,000
Shares, representing 75.0% of the issued Shares, whereas 200,000,000
Shares, representing 25.0% of the issued Shares, have been held by the
public.

R_E—+&+A-+N\B EB—EBE
H)EmEREERERAR(ER] (E
BEAIVYEEHZ AR _ZT—t&
NAEB B—8BE AR LMBEZE
ahE(GB EERSE]) B BEHE
BHERELE ke —EGERZWEHE
SR (88 &R’ 4] (B & ££565,000,000
BB D) EARRABEBHITRAEEKY
70.625%) * 8 (8 £534,375,00078 T (85
R E R E IR 15 0.9458 8 L) ©

EEHER_ZE—tFNATHRHZEK
([ B— W BREaBREZE
RAEERTHENBAR DA Z EERE
R-RTEREEHFEEREFARAGNMRESE
4 HERRM0.9458F TTH B K W E =
HEBETROG(E—RE—BTHALED
HEXRBEWBEOROEN TEHN]) 2
AR —_E—+tFNA-_+TLtBEER - NE
WERE E—RE-—HTHALIREH
689,940,000 % iz 7 ({5 AR Al B 1Tl AN 48
£ 4986.243%) H B Em - WA - 1=
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was approximately HK$315.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$32.3 million or 11.4% from
approximately HK$283.2 million for the year ended 30 April 2017. The
increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the revival of inbound
tourism and an improvement in local consumption demand. In addition,
our new businesses were operated smoothly and there was revenue
derived from it.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of cost of inventories sold and
provision for slow-moving inventories. Our cost of sales increased by
approximately HK$18.5 million or 9.6% from approximately HK$192.9
million for the year ended 30 April 2017 to approximately HK$211.4
million for the Year. During the Year, the Group recorded a provision for
slow-moving inventories of approximately HK$1.1 million (2017
approximately HK$6.9 million) to profit or loss. The provision for slow-
moving inventories as at 30 April 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$23.8 million (As at 30 April 2017: approximately HK$22.7 million).

Eliminating the effect of the provision for slow-moving inventories, cost of
sales before provision of slow-moving inventory increased by
approximately HK$ 24.3 million or 13.1 % from approximately HK$186.0
million for the year ended 30 April 2017 to approximately HK$210.3
million for the Year. The increase was mainly due to an improvement in
sales of watches and in line with the increase in revenue of approximately
11.4% during the Year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$13.8 million or 15.3%
from approximately HK$90.3 million for the year ended 30 April 2017 to
approximately HK$104.1 million for the Year. Our overall gross profit
margin increased from approximately 31.9% for the year ended 30 April
2017 to approximately 33.0% for the Year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the contribution from our new businesses and a decrease
in provision for slow-moving inventories during the Year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs decreased by approximately HK$10.5
million or 10.2% from approximately HK$102.8 million for the year ended
30 April 2017 to approximately HK$92.3 milion for the Year. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the decreases in depreciation,
impairment of property, plant and equipment and provision for onerous
operating leases during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$11.3 million
or 72.4% from approximately HK$15.6 million for the year ended 30 April
2017 to approximately HK$26.9 million for the Year. The increase was
primarily attributable to the increases in the professional expenses,
auditor’'s remuneration, salaries and directors’ emoluments and staff-
related costs in line with its business operation plan during the Year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately HK$0.2 million or 50.0%
from approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended 30 April 2017 to
approximately HK$0.6 million for the Year. The increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in interest rate during the Year.

Loss before tax and loss attributable to owners of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our loss before income tax decreased by
approximately HK$12.9 million or 45.1% from approximately HK$28.6
million for the year ended 30 April 2017 to approximately HK$15.7 million
for the Year.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately HK$7.5 million or 27.1% from approximately HK$27.7
million for the year ended 30 April 2017 to approximately HK$20.2 million
for the Year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.
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MANARGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAWYSIS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s primary source of funds was cash inflows from operating
activities and bank borrowings.

As at 30 April 2018, the Group’s total cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$54.6 million (30 April 2017: approximately HK$37.1
million), most of which were denominated in HK$. The current ratio
(calculated by current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group
decreased from approximately 3.8 times as at 30 April 2017 to
approximately 2.0 times as at 30 April 2018. The gearing ratio (calculated
by net debt divided by total capital) of the Group maintained at net cash
position as at 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2017. During the year ended 30
April 2017, the Group failed to comply with one of the covenant
requirements related to the Group’s bank loans amounting to
approximately HK$5.5 million. In July 2017, the bank granted a one-off
waiver from compliance with the relevant breached covenant requirement
for the year ended 30 April 2017.

INVENTORIES

The Group had total inventories balances of approximately HK$52.0
million as at 30 April 2018, decreased by HK$45.9 million or 46.9% from
HK$97.9 million as at 30 April 2017. The decrease was because that the
Group continued to strengthen the connection between procurement
and marketing and downsize the inventory scale.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS

The balance of the Group’s trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments increased by approximately HK$92.2 million or 1,245.9%
from approximately HK$7.4 million as at 30 April 2017 to approximately
HK$99.6 million as at 30 April 2018. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in prepayments from customers settled by bills receivables and
prepayments to suppliers that resulted in an increase in the balance of
trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments at the end of the
Year in relation to our new businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The balance of the Group’s provision for other liabilities and charges,
trade and other payables increased by approximately HK$74.8 million or
298.0% from approximately HK$25.1 milion as at 30 April 2017 to
approximately HK$99.9 million as at 30 April 2018. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in advance receipt from customers at the end
of the Year in relation to our new businesses.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the listing of the Shares on 12 May 2015 (the
“Listing” and the “Listing Date”, respectively) (after deducting the
underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$107.5 million, which have been intended to be applied in the manner
as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2015 (the
“Prospectus”).

During the period from the Listing Date, to 30 April 2018, the Group has
applied the net proceeds from the Listing as follows:
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Expand our retail and sales network EERMOZE LHEERL 23,520 14,093
Improve our same-store sales growth and RERMMNE/EHEEEREF

profit margin = 12,896 %
Improve our supplier network and enhance WERMAEEEAE RS

the knowledge of our sales fHE B T A AN 1,381 2,918

Increase our marketing effort Meamis L N E 6,828 695

Repay a short-term bank loan with interest BEEHRITERENR 37,613 -
Working capital and other general corporate &E& & M EM — RO XA S

purposes 6,600 923

Total Et 88,838 18,629

The unutilised net proceeds from the Listing are placed as deposits with

licensed banks in Hong Kong.
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MANARGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAWYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 April 2018, the Group had a total of 140 (2017: 98) employees.
The total remuneration costs incurred by the Group for the Year were
approximately HK$36.5 million (2017: approximately HK$33.4 million).
We review the performance of our employees annually and use the
results of such review in our annual salary review and promotion
appraisal, in order to attract and retain valuable employees. Remuneration
packages are generally structured by reference to market norms,
individual qualifications, relevant experience and performance.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 21
April 2015 for the primary purpose of providing eligible participants with
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and to motivate,
attract and retain the eligible participants whose contributions are
important to the long-term growth and profitability of the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any employees, executive or non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors),
advisors and consultants of the Group. On 4 January 2018, the Company
granted to certain eligible participants share options, which was subject
to, among others, a refreshment of the scheme mandate limit for the
Scheme (the “Refreshment”). The resolution concerning the Refreshment
was duly passed by the Shareholders at an EGM held on 25 January
2018. As the share options were not successfully granted in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Scheme, no share options were
granted and outstanding as at 30 April 2018.
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MANARGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$6.6 million as at 30
April 2018, while that as at 30 April 2017 was approximately HK$16.0
million. Borrowings of approximately HK$0.8 million as at 30 April 2018
were fixed at interest rates from 2.90% to 3.09% (As at 30 April 2017:
approximately HK$0.4 million at fixed interest rate of 2.90%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in
HK$ and unsecured and approximated to their fair values.

As at 30 April 2018, the Group did not have any foreign exchange
contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

The bank loans of approximately HK$5.5 million as at 30 April 2017 had
been drawn from one of the Group’s banking facilities, for which one of
the covenants requirements was in breach. In July 2017, the bank
granted a one-off waiver from compliance with the relevant breached
covenant requirement for the year ended 30 April 2017.

As at 30 April 2018, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$23.5 milion (As at 30 April 2017: approximately
HK$76.1 million), for overdrafts and loans. Unused facilities as at the
same date were approximately HK$17.7 million (As at 30 April 2017:
approximately HK$60.5 million). The banking facilities were granted to the
subsidiaries of the Company and were subject to an annual review and
guaranteed by unlimited guarantees from the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group does not have a significant foreign exchange exposure and
has currently not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy. The
management will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, on 13
June 2018, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”) with Lithium Chile Inc. in
relation to the Equity Investment and the Norte Program as briefly
described below. The MOU contemplates the equity investment of
CDN$1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$6,000,000) in the common Shares of
Lithium Chile Inc. by the Company to be completed within 60 days from
the signing of a joint venture agreement in relation thereto (the “Equity
Investment”). The MOU also contemplates the three-year program for
exploration of lithium and/or nitrates in the 33,100 hectare of Pintadas
Norte property owned by Lithium Chile Inc. (the “Norte Program”) and
an annual financial commitment of CDN$1,000,000 from the Company.
The first annual financial commitment of CDN$1,000,000 payable by the
Company to Lithium Chile Inc. within 60 days from the date of the
completion of the Equity Investment and will be funded by the net
proceeds from the issue of convertible notes as set out in the circular of
the Company dated 11 July 2018. The Company has no obligation to
provide the second or third annual financial commitment, unless it is
satisfied with the results of the Norte Program in the first year. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 13 June 2018 for further
details. As at the date of this annual report, no joint venture agreement
has been signed.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Except for investments in subsidiaries, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company as at 30
April 2018.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BEREE

The Group had no capital commitments as at 30 April 2018 (2017: Nil). KEBRZZ—N\FUA=ZFTHIEEZRK
EE(CE—LF /) o

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RAREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 30 April  NEB R —_ZE—N\FR T —+tFW A=
2018 and 2017. THREETFNEAXARE-

FINAL DIVIDEND REKRE

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final B EHEe@ HZ A AEZHAEE RN E MK
dividend for the Year (2017: Nil). HRE(ZE—tF: %)
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Q BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
ESRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Meng Guangyin (ZE$R), aged 52, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 September 2017 and as the Chairman on 28 September
2017. He has been re-designated as an Executive Director, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chairman on 1 April 2018. He is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Meng Guangyin had been the chairman and the general manager of
Ruixing Group Company Limited* (im2%BARE A F]) since October
2003, and has been re-designated to the chairman and the chief
executive officer since February 2013. He has more than 20 years of
experience in manufacturing of biochemical products for the agricultural
industry. He holds an associate degree in business administration from
Shandong Economics Management College* (|LI152 48 4% 75 & 182 24 2 25
in the PRC.

Mr. Meng Guangyin is the brother-in-law of Mr. Liu Guoging, an Executive
Director. In addition, he is the sole director of Prosper One, a controlling
Shareholder.

Mr. Meng Bo (F§), aged 50, was appointed as our Executive Director
on 7 September 2017. Mr. Meng Bo obtained an associate degree in
marketing from Shandong Polytechnic College* (LLIE T % £(7) (now
known as Shandong Polytechnic University) in June 2000. He joined
Ruixing Group Company Limited* (H2£BEARMH AR A T) in August
1987 with his current position as a general secretary and an assistant
general manager, responsible for office administration management. Prior
to his current position, he was a sales manager and an assistant manager
to the operations department. He has around 16 years of experience as
a managerial role.

Mr. Liu Guogqing (2|ElE), aged 47, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 September 2017, as the Chief Financial Officer on 28
September 2017 and as a Co-chief Executive Officer on 18 October
2017; and subsequently re-designated as an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2018. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in corporate management from Beijing Business Management College* (1t
RIEEEEERT) in the PRC in July 2005. He joined Ruixing Group
Company Limited* (wE%EE KB ARZAR]) in August 2003 with his
current position as the manager of finance department and as a deputy
general manager since January 2016. He has three years of managerial
experience in financial matters and nine years of managerial experience in
procurement and logistics operations in Ruixin Group Company Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SSERE(B)

Mr. Liu Guoging is the brother-in-law of Mr. Meng Guangyin, the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director.

Mr. Liu Jiagiang (2I/03&), aged 45, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 7 September 2017. He obtained an associate degree in
finance from Shandong Agricultural University* (1L 3R 2 3£ A £ in January
2016. He has over 20 years of working experience, and he spent seven
years thereof in a managerial role. He has worked in Ruixing Group
Company Limited* (rE £ B BRAR]) since December 1995. He
has served as the general manager in the investment department and the
manager in the capital operations department since November 2016.

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung (BE@4R) (“Mr. Liao”), aged 43, was appointed as
our Executive Director, the Vice Chairman and the Chief Operating Officer
on 18 October 2017. Mr. Liao obtained his Executive Master Degree of
Science in Finance from Baruch College, the City University of New York
in the United States of America and his Bachelor Degree in Business
from National Chung Cheng University in Taiwan.

Mr. Liao has many years of experience in the finance industry in China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan. Since 1997, he had worked for various financial
institutions including Antay Securities Taiwan, Jih Sun Securities Co.,
Ltd., Dryden Wealth Management (Taiwan) Co., Ltd., Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited and UBS AG.

Mr. Liao had been an executive director and the group chief executive
officer of Crown International Corporation Limited (“Crown International”)
whose issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 727), from 27 May 2014 to 30 March 2015. He had also
been the chairman of the board of directors of Crown International from
11 September 2014 to 30 March 2015, and the group chief financial
officer of the same company from 27 May 2014 to 14 September 2014.

Mr. Liao had also been an executive director of China Hanking Holdings
Limited whose issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 3788), from 16 July 2015 to 18 March 2016 and
the chief financial officer of the same company from 1 April 2015 to 18
March 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael (BRE&¥F) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 41, was
appointed as our INED on 20 September 2017. Mr. Chan is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is currently the director of MCI CPA Limited and has over
10 years of working experience in the fields of accounting and audit,
corporate secretarial management and corporate governance.

Mr. Chan has served as an independent non-executive director of a
number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely: China Sandi
Holdings Limited (stock code: 910) since 9 July 2014, China Wah Yan
Healthcare Limited (stock code: 648) since 15 July 2014 and New
Wisdom Holding Company Limited (stock code: 8213) since 8 November
2016.

Mr. Chan is currently the company secretary of China Sunshine Paper
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2002), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as well as Northeast Electric
Development Co., Limited (stock code: 0042), a joint stock limited
company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration (Honours)
in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
member with practicing certificate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.
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SSERE(B)

Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (&) (“Mr. Tian”), aged 47, was appointed as our
INED on 20 September 2017. Mr. Tian is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Tian has over 20 years of
working experience in the fields of accounting and audit.

Mr. Tian joined ShineWing Certified Public Accountants Jinan Branch* ({5
KR MEEHAN =TSR IR S8 A B) BRI 2 PT) in September 1994 and
has been the director of management consultancy department since July
2016, being responsible for the business development and technical
support of consultancy service projects.

Mr. Tian obtained a diploma in financial accounting from Beijing Jiaotong
University* ({75 33BAZ) (now known as b RAZBAEZ) in July 1994,
Mr. Tian is a registered certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Hu Jinrui (F8€#) (“Mr. Hu”), aged 41, was appointed as our INED
on 20 September 2017. Mr. Hu is a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Hu has over ten years of
working experience in the legal industry in China. Mr. Hu is currently a
lawyer and partner of Beijing Huanfu Law Firm* (bt R IR & 2RI =5 FA)
since October 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Hu served as a lawyer’s assistant
and then a lawyer in Beijing Tianping Law Firm* (3t 5 X 42 6l 5 75 F7)
between August 2004 and September 2006. Mr. Hu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in laws from Guizhou University* (& /1A in July
1999, and a master’s degree in laws from Beijing University* (552 A £2)
in July 2010.

* The English transliterations of the Chinese name are for identification purpose only

HEBEARE(HEED 47 R-_T—+
FAA-_+HEZERBIFRNTES -
BELERFHNZESER BERZEBEK
ENRBZEENE - AEEREGTRE
A EERB20F TR -

BEER—NNATEENAMAEKF M
SEMEBR(BREBRAR) BERED M
TE-ZF-"EFLARETEERKALE
B RAREBERNMEHRE AR KX
& e

BEER-NANAEFELARBIET RBAKR
BEBILERRBAE)UBEHAXE- B
EERTEGZEM A G S 2 M5t -

HERAEET(BEED 415 R-_F—+
FAA-_+HEZERBIUFNTES-
MEERESERZEEGRREZBEEN
B-HEEARPRZEZZRAEEB T FIIE
K B_TTRFTAE PELEEMR
ERTEREEMEGA 2 ERMFERA -
A R _TEOFNAZE_ZTTRFN
ABE HEEREEItRm X FRMER
Pz REDBYIE  HEREMLEM - HEERN
—NAANFLAMBEMNKREERB LR
- INR—F-—ZFFELAMBILERABEX
RET B

YRR R GEE TV E R

@)




@ Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ExXEBWS

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ value through
good corporate governance. The Directors recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures, internal control and risk management
procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures, internal control and
risk management procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted and adhered to the principles
as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has adopted and complied with all applicable code provisions
as set out in the CG Code except for code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code as described in the paragraph headed “Chairman And Chief
Executive” below.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
governing the securities transactions by the Directors. Following a
specific enquiry made by the Company on each of the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code
during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of the
Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures
that the requisite financial and human resources support is in place for
the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by the
Board include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s business
plans and strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major
capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring and
reviewing the Group’s corporate governance practices and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Articles of Association. The
Board has established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference. The responsibilities of these Board committees
include monitoring the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensuring that appropriate internal control and risk management are
in place. The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to
management of the Group if and when considered appropriate. The
management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to perform their
responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding and implementing the view that
the Board should include a balanced composition of Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.
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As at 30 April 2018, the Board comprised eight Directors, of which the
INEDs in aggregate represented more than one-third of the Board
members. The composition of the Board during the Year is set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Meng Guangyin ™"
Mr. Meng Bo "0t

Mr. Liu Guoging "9

Mr. Liu Jiagiang Met2

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung "4
Mr. Lam Man Wah Me9
Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa M09
Mr. He Guangrui 7

Mr. Tsang Hok Man M9
Mr. Yang Haoju Metes2and6)
Mr. Yan Yongjian Metes2and6
Mr. Huang Lei (Notes 2 and 6)

INEDS

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael "¢ 9
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan Mete®

Mr. Hu Jinrui et

Mr. Chong Man Leung "9

Mr. Fung Tat Man ete9

Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie %9

Notes:

1. Mr. Meng Guangyin was appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September
2017, as the Chairman on 28 September 2017 and as the CEO on 1 April 2018.

2. Each of Mr. Meng Bo, Mr. Liu Jiagiang, Mr. Yang Haoju, Mr. Yan Yongjian and
Mr. Huang Lei was appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September 2017.

3. Mr. Liu Guoging was appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September 2017,
as the CFO on 28 September 2017 and as a Co-CEO on 18 October 2017; and
was re-designated as an Executive Director and the CFO on 1 April 2018.

4. Mr. Liao Pin Tsung was appointed as an Executive Director, the Vice Chairman
and the COO on 18 October 2017.

5. Mr. Lam Man Wah resigned as the Chairman and the CEO on 28 September
2017.
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6. Each of Mr. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa, Mr. Tsang Hok Man, Mr. Yang Haoju, Mr. Yan
Yongjian and Mr. Huang Lei resigned as an Executive Director on 28 September
2017.

7. Mr. He Guangrui was appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September 2017
and as the CEO on 28 September 2017; was re-designated as an Executive
Director and the Co-CEO on 18 October 2017; and resigned as an Executive
Director and a Co-CEO on 1 April 2018.

8. Each of Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael, Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Hu Jinrui was
appointed as an INED on 20 September 2017.

9. Each of Mr. Chong Man Leung, Mr. Fung Tat Man and Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie
resigned as an INED on 28 September 2017.

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Mr. Meng Guangyin is the brother-in-law of Mr. Liu Guoging. Save as
disclosed, there was no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in the Board meetings and serving on various Board
committees, all INEDs will continue to make various contributions to the
Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which was in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of
INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board members, and that
at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence in writing
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company considers that all the INEDs are
independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Chairman, being an Executive Director, at least held
one meeting with the INEDs without the presence of other Executive
Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each of the newly appointed Directors has received a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and business and is fully aware of the Director’s
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company will from time
to time fund and arrange suitable training to all Directors to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their duties and
responsibilities, such that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they have been
requested to provide the Company with their training records. According
to the training records maintained by the Company, the continuing
professional development programmes received by each of the Directors
during the Year is summarised as follows:

EZABEBEEEXREE

EHEEEEHANBREZEREIEMHIE
X 2ELREAASNEZ ABNGE  EEREA
BEREBARREENER AUxTE T H
HRERREBRZE  EWRA - ZREREA
EEREUARRABEBREABRET Z
EE=RAE-

WIBEEEEIRTRIZTRRXEAL5E
MEEZER2EBEEXUR BRYE
MAEMBL X UWHRREESEEZAER
HEMRINAMBZBERTHEZTEIED
BR-ARBA T AEZREELHAEE
A REREAREE BRI HEEME
REFEzMBREE NEHEBTEH
EHERAMIEGEMBZBERATHESZEE
HEM - ARATBBE2REEZT2MER
EIIRE  BRABARRAE B2RBEE
ERERAARAREEBICE - R
AnRlFEZBILE BESRAFE
AERZFEREERAEMMNT

Name of Director Type of training
E=pE =31 8RB
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Meng Guangyin® SmEREES AandBand C AKBRC
Mr. Meng Bo” TR ES AandBand C AKBKC
Mr. Liu Guoging® 2B kL AandBandC  AKMBRC
Mr. Liu Jiagiang” 2 hnsg gk A2 AandBandC  AKBRKC
Mr. Liao Pin Tsung" Bmiri " AandBandC  AKBRKC
INEDs BYFHTES

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael’ PREA T &Y AandBandC  ARBRC
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan' HEREAT AandBand C AKkBRKC
Mr. Hu Jinruit e AandBandC  AKBRKC
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Name of Director Type of training
EEMR =Z I B
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lam Man Wah * MOEE S A Aand C AKC
Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa * BRaEzLt Aand C AKC
Mr. He Guangrui *# B o AandBandC AKkBKC
Mr. Huang Lei # 2 B EES" AandBand C AKBRKC
Mr. Tsang Hok Man * = e o Aand C AKX C
Mr. Yang Haoju *# B IE ke AandBandC  AKBXKC
Mr. Yan Yongjian * # Bk B £ AandBand C AKRBRKC
INEDs BYFHITES

Mr. Chong Man Leung * PR e Aand C ANC
Mr. Fung Tat Man * TSEX L EY Aand C AXC
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie * ERREL L Aand C AR C

A:

attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars, briefings,
conferences, forums and workshops

reading materials relating to the economy, general business, corporate
governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities

reading newspapers and journals relating to the corporate governance matters,
environment and social issues or director’s duties and responsibilities

appointed on 7 September 2017
appointed on 20 September 2017
appointed on 18 October 2017
resigned on 28 September 2017
resigned on 1 April 2018
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board is scheduled four regular meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in
advance. For all other Board meetings, notice will be given in a
reasonable time in advance. The Directors are allowed to include any
matter in the agenda that is required for discussion and resolution at the
meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed on issues arising
at each of the Board meetings and to make informed decisions, an
agenda and the accompanying Board papers will be sent to all Directors
at least three days before the intended date of the Board meeting, or
such other period as agreed. The Company Secretary is responsible for
keeping all Board meetings’ minutes. Draft and final versions of the
minutes will be circulated to the Directors for comments and record
respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

For the Year, the Board held 7 meetings, 4 of which were regular
meetings. The attendance of each Director at the Board meeting for the
Year, the 2017 AGM held on 16 October 2017 and the EGM held on 25
January 2018 is set out below:
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Board
Meeting(s) 2017 AGM EGM
—ZE2—+tF

ExgEld RRBEFEARE RRBFIXE
Name of Directors Attended/eligible to attend
EERE BHE SERERE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Meng Guangyin® T ER A 2/2 11 1/2
Mr. Meng Bo” TR 2/2 1/1 2/2
Mr. Liu Guoging® DB E S 2/2 1/1 2/2
Mr. Liu Jiagiang® 2 hnss 5 &£ 2/2 1/ 2/2
Mr. Liao Pin Tsung Bmirk A" 1/1 N/A T3 1/1
INEDs BYFHITES
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michaelt PR BR - S At 2/2 0/1 0/2
Mr. Tian Zhiyuant HEREAE! 2/2 0/1 0/2
Mr. Hu Jinrui t HAE A 2/2 0/1 0/2
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Board
Meeting(s) 2017 AGM EGM
—E—+tF

EEZgEE RBRRBEFAE RERHFIXE
Name of Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Ex=pE BHE SERERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Man Wah * M ERET 5/5 N/A 7~ N/A 73 F
Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa * PReEa Lt 4/5 N/A 7~ N/A i
Mr. He Guangrui *» By 2/2 11 1/2
Mr. Huang Lei *» BRI E 11 N/A i A N/A 7~ A
Mr. Tsang Hok Man * Bt 5/5 N/A 735 R N/A -3
Mr. Yang Haoju ** RS v 1/1 N/A 73 N/A i
Mr. Yan Yongjian * * MK R A 1/1 N/A 7N 3 N/A 73 F
INEDs BYEHITES
Mr. Chong Man Leung * HxXsmkaE 5/5 N/A i N/A 7~ A
Mr. Fung Tat Man * IBEX A 5/5 N/A A~ F N/A TiE
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie *# EREL L 5/5 N/A e N/A A3 F
A appointed on 7 September 2017 7 RZE—tFNALBEZTE
* appointed on 20 September 2017 ' RZFE-—EtFNAZHHBZRE
" appointed on 18 October 2017 Y RZZF-tF+ATN\HEZRE
# resigned on 28 September 2017 ) RZZ-LFAAZ+N\BHIT

* RZE-NFHA-AFHE

Y resigned on 1 April 2018

For the Year, apart from the Board meetings, consents and/or approvals
of all the Directors were also obtained by way of written resolutions on a
number of matters.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity of
Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills and knowledge.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision of A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. During the period from 1 May 2017
to 27 September 2017, Mr. Lam Man Wah, a former executive Director,
was acting as the Chairman and the CEO concurrently. Mr. Lam Man
Wah resigned on 28 September 2017. On the same day, Mr. Meng
Guangyin was appointed as the Chairman and Mr. He Guangrui, a former
Director, was appointed as the CEO. On 18 October 2017, Mr. Liu
Guoging has been appointed as a Co-CEO and Mr. He Guangrui has
been re-designated from the CEO to a Co-CEO. On 1 April 2018, Mr. He
Guangrui and Mr. Liu Guoqging were replaced by Mr. Meng Guangyin
who has been re-designated as an Executive Director, the CEO and the
Chairman. The Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the
best interests of the Group to have Mr. Meng Guangyin taking up both
roles for effective management and business development. Therefore,
the Board considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances. Nevertheless, the
Company will look for suitable candidates and will make necessary
arrangement pursuant to the requirement under A.2.1 of CG Code as
and when necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises all the
three INEDs, namely Mr. Tian Zhiyuan, Mr. Hu Jinrui and Mr. Chan, Yee
Ping Michael who is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, and approving
their remuneration and terms of engagement, and handling any
questions regarding their resignation or dismissal;
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reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and discussing with the external auditors
on the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences;

developing and implementing a policy on engaging external
auditors to supply non-audit services and reporting to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where an
action or improvement is needed;

monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and financial statements and half-year report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;

oversighting the Company’s financial reporting system, and risk
management and internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
the management to ensure that the management has performed its
duty to have such effective systems;

considering major investigation findings of internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditors to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letters; and

considering other topics as defined by the Board.
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During the Year, 2 Audit Committee meetings were held and the Audit
Committee, amongst other matters, considered and approved (i) the draft
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 October 2017 for presentation to the Board for its
consideration and approval and (i) audit-related matters.

The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings during
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the Year is as follows: CeHRZNBMT
No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Name of Directors Eligible to Attend
HERE
BRNRH
E=pE FEREESSE
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael (Chairman) * BREAF L (EE) 11
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan * HERLE" 1/1
Mr. Hu Jinrui * & B A 1/1
Mr. Fung Tat Man (Chairman) ** BEXRE(EE) 11
Mr. Chong Man Leung ** X RES 11
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie ** = e S 1/1
7 appointed on 28 September 2017 * N FENA -+ \BEEF
) ceased to act on 28 September 2017 o Ro-TB—+EH B -+ /\BHE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in that at
least one of the members of the Audit Committee (which must comprise
a minimum of three members and must be chaired by an independent
non-executive Director) is an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The audited Financial Statements have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on 30 July 2018. The Audit Committee is
of the opinion that such consolidated financial statements comply with
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan, Yee
Ping Michael and Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Meng Guangyin, an Executive
Director. Mr. Tian Zhiyuan is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

o reviewing and approving the management’s performance-based
remuneration by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° either: (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management; or (i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

o making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
INEDs;

° considering the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;
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o reviewing and approving the compensation payable to the e B R ERNRTEENSRER

Executive Directors and senior management for any loss or STHEERNR BB EZEEB
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent BEE UMEZEEEESIER—
with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; B REEANET— BEN

ARFER THEKBEARE:

. reviewing and approving the compensation arrangements relating o sl R#t /EREEEIT AL S MR E K

to the dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to BrBEBEEEMAP R ZEELTHE U
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and are MRZEZHRANBER B X
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and BEE A NG —E BENRESEE
Al .
ERNS

e ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in HERMESEEIHEABEAZAE
deciding his own remuneration. EEHARG 25 -

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee atthe &K HMEZEEeKERAEELEFME E

meetings of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is as follows: S NENT
No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Name of Director Eligible to Attend
HE R
BERUE
EENE ERRE
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan (Chairman) * AEREE(FEE)" N/A 7N 8
Mr. Meng Guangyin * T ER KA N/A A~ A
Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael * PR AR S 5E A N/A T~ A
Mr. Chong Man Leung (Chairman) ** X mE(EE)" 2/2
Mr. Fung Tat Man ** RS 3 S 2/2
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie ** [ R LA A 2/2
> appointed on 28 September 2017 * RZE-EFRLAZ+N\AEZE
> ceased to act on 28 September 2017 W RZZE—+FNAZ+N\HHIE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings; and HEZEeRNAEFEEFRITTMRAEE B
among other things, reviewed and recommended to the Board for @i b (e el iEZEESe %%
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and EEZN LA ETEE 25 THHMEBESZSE -
senior management. The then chairman and the members of the HMEZEEeERMNIFIERKELR ITZeE
Remuneration Committee attended such meeting. %o
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 April 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises two
INEDs, namely Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Hu Jinrui, and Mr. Meng
Guangyin, an Executive Director. Mr. Meng Guangyin is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
but are not limited to:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

assessing the independence of the INEDs; and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executive.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at its
meetings during the Year is as follows:

Name of Director
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BEEZREWT

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings
Eligible to Attend

HERE

BBRE

EEpE EERHE
Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman) * BEREE(FE)" N/A 1~ iE A
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan * EREES N/A i A
Mr. Hu Jinrui * tH& 8 & N/A T~ A
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie (Chairman) ** BERESE(ERE) 2/2
Mr. Chong Man Leung ** HX A 2/2
Mr. Fung Tat Man ** S S 2/2

*
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appointed on 28 September 2017
ceased to act on 28 September 2017
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings and among
other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to the
Board for consideration the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the
2017 AGM. The then chairman and the members of the Nomination
Committee attended such meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include but are not limited to:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries; and

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of one year. For Mr. Meng Guangyin,
Mr. Meng Bo, Mr. Liu Guoging and Mr. Liu Jiagiang, their service
agreements commenced on 7 September 2017, and for Mr. Liao Pin
Tsung, his service agreement commenced on 18 October 2017.
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Each of the INEDs has been appointed for a specific term. Each of Mr.
Chan, Yee Ping Michael, Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Hu Jinrui has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year commencing on 20 September 2017.

The extension of the terms or the renewal of any such service agreements
or letters of appointment, where necessary, will be in compliance with the
Listing Rules and any other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service agreement
or letter of appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries other
than the agreements/letters of appointment expiring or determinable by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment
and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation
and will be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall
continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
The Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to
ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who
wishes to retire and does not offer himself for re-election. Any further
Directors so to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment and so that as between the
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.
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Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers had been the Independent Auditors since the
listing of the issued Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
12 May 2015. On 27 April 2017, PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as
the Independent Auditors. On the same date, the Board appointed Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”) to fill the casual vacancy as the
Independent Auditors until the conclusion of the 2017 AGM.

Baker Tilly resigned as the Independent Auditors on 18 April 2018. On 3
July 2018, the Board appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) to
fill the casual vacancy as the Independent Auditors until the conclusion of
the 2018 AGM.

Please refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2015 and
the announcements of the Company dated 27 April 2017, 18 April and 3
July 2018 for further details.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
AND REMUNERATION

The statement of the Independent Auditors about their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Financial Statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to Deloitte as the
Independent Auditors in respect of the Year is set out below:

RAFEER AEEEN/RBARH 2B
ZEEDH B E S AT

Fee paid/

Services payable

Bt

PR % ERABET

HK$’000

FET

Audit services LR 2,033
Non-audit services T %R

Review of interim condensed consolidated financial 23 EIf R4 & B ISR & 371

statements

Tax services Tt 75 AR 75 23

Other professional services Hih BEERB 63

Total et 2,490

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
Financial Statements.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the Group’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management policies and systems established by the management of
the Company (collectively “internal controls”).
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

For the Year, the Board has conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. Such review has been made by discussion with the Audit
Committee, management and the Independent Auditors from time to
time, but at least once a year. The Board will put in place to address the
identified area that will be enhanced. The Board considers that the
existing risk management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective.

The Company also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
systems, and has procedures in place to keep information confidential
and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal
structures have been designed to prevent the misuse of inside
information and avoid conflicts of interest.

The Audit Committee has received the summarized information on the
risk management and internal controls conducted by the internal audit
team. The work carried in relation to the identified areas are summarized
as follows:

()  the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

(i) a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

(iiy ~ an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the Year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed with the
management.
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The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and is
fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls within
the Group to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group’s
assets, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the
systems in place are adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced promptly. The procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and the Company’s website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the Executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the
financial controller of the Company are authorised to communicate
with parties outside the Group.
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CHANGE IN COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and
relevant flow of information is maintained amongst members of the Board
and that all procedures have been adhered to in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

On 28 September 2017, Mr. Cheung Siu Wah resigned as the Company
Secretary and Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”) has been appointed as
the Company Secretary.

Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited
(“Boardroom”) to be the Company Secretary on 28 September 2017
and since then, Boardroom has been providing certain corporate
secretarial services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The primary person
at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting in respect of
company secretarial matters is Mr. Liao Pin Tsung, the Vice Chairman
and the COO.

Mr. Kwok delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant continuous
professional development training during the Year pursuant to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a
key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its Shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its announcements,
circulars as well as annual and interim reports. The corporate website of
the Company has provided an effective communication platform to the
public and the Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the Year, the Company has not made any change to its
constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the Company’s
constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a Shareholder’s communication policy with
an objective to provide our Shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as Shareholders in an
informed manner. The Company would review the Shareholders’
communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
Shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include AGM, annual report, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for demanding a poll will be included in circulars
accompanying. The notice convening a general meeting and such
procedure will be read out by the chairman of the general meeting or his
delegate. The AGMs and other general meetings of the Company are
primary forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The members of the Board, Board committees and the
Independent Auditors are present to answer Shareholders’ questions at
the AGMs. The Company will provide Shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable the Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). As a channel to promote
effective  communication, the Group maintains a website where
information on the Company’s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors may write
directly to the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong
with any inquiries.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or move
resolutions at the AGMs under the Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands. However, Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM”
set out below.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EGM

Written requisition of any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board or the Company
by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules,
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure that information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling the Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and Shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue to use its reasonable endeavours in
maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate governance
level and quality.
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EFERS

The Directors present to the Shareholders their report for the Year and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year (the
“Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the retail of mid-end watches in
Hong Kong and (ii) the sale and trading of fertilisers raw materials and
related fertiliser products, and public consumption products.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 156 of this
annual report. The summary does not form part of the Financial
Statements.

FAIR REVIEW OF BUSINESS

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year and the likely future development in
the Group’s business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the “Five-Year Financial Summary” of
this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, which may
materially adversely affect its business, financial conditions or results of
operations. As some of the projects are located in the PRC, the political,
economic and legal developments and changes to government policies
in the PRC may have a significant impact to the Group.

The financial risks of the Group included interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. These financial risks are elaborated in Note 30b to the
Financial Statements of this annual report.

EEARRARERFAFEZRERALE
EAFEREZRERES VB RE (MR
&) e

TEX®

ARBZEIBEBAREER EWEBA
AIEERNEBRF()TEREKTE L)L
R EL K AE BB d A e A HOB R dm 88

ENEBEE-

AEERAERELEDME D 2 RRD
AT B B TS $R R M 5E6 o

EEMBHRE

AEEBEAAMBRFEZETEREN
REERBBZBMEINAFHRFEIOHE -
MEX T HERR 2D -

E 3 NS C) |

AEBEBzATRE AEBARFEER
Hatim ko RS B R 2 7] B R K 3
RENAFRIEFEREIREEEFT R L
DITIMET - ERAETBUBRABREZAE
BAFERADTHEANADFERIAFHHM

Z]—#-

TERBREREEMS

AEEEESERR N TETE ATy
HEXD WHEARKEEXREEXTHE
- mRMoEE DURFE RAEBOS -
RERERERANMBIFRERE S 0] e Y
AEBERERTE -

AEEzT2RARBENXAR EFER
RERBDETRER - ZFEMHERKAF
R 9 7% R M £SO R A o

@




®)

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2018
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ESTHRE (B)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group. During the
Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in the places where it operates
in all material respects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers,
shareholders and other stakeholders. During the Year, there was no
material or significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers,
customers and/other stakeholders.

Employees

The Group recognizes that employees are the valuable assets of the
Group. The Group has complied with the applicable labour laws and
regulations by regularly reviewing the remuneration package of the
Group’s employees by reference to market standard, and conform to the
performance, qualifications and experience of the employees.

Customers

The Group is committed to providing good quality service to its
customers and enhance the loyalty of customers by increasing the
interaction with customers through social media platforms, which provide
a good foundation to our Group’s overall performance in the long run.

Suppliers

The Group has maintained good relationships with its suppliers. The
Group cooperates with suppliers that are committed to quality of
products.

Shareholders and other stakeholders

The Group has made an ongoing dialogue with its investors and
Shareholders as provided in the “Investor Relations” and “Shareholder
Communication” paragraphs of the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report.

BFEPIRER

AEEEREAHMEREEBRR ME
FFoeRERENEEBERHBELS
AEBERIBTHRAEEREZEZEREER
EXEE-RAFEARBEEAFHZHA
H AEBCRMEEARTHETEEM
itz — YIBREA DI KOER

HIBMEHBEALTZBE

AEEREEHADERESR  BF - #F
BBREEE BN HMEEA LR E R S
HEBALZXH - RAFER KAEBRL
GER EFREMASARALLES
BREAFH -

BE

AEBEXARENASEBEEEE - A&
BEEE2RTERENEEZRR &
ErEBEdRad A AEBEER Z HMA
G emBTERE A RIESR

5F
AEEHNIREPRHEELARY BB
RHERXFamelErREHRMEATP
BHE BRAESEREERBRALTRY
Eifp o

HER

AEEEBERHERESRIBE - A%
BEINEGRREREGRZHEERAE-

BREEMAZHEBAL
BMAFREZLERREREEREIR
[EREE BRI MBAL A EERRA
ERIRR— RS



E-BEBRZERERAT —FT-N\FEH

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SRS (B)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE

The Group continually reviews its ESG efforts, corporate governance and
risk management practices with an aim to create and deliver sustainable
value to all key stakeholders. The Group has been exploring more
efficient opportunities to reduce the consumption of resources in order to
reduce its impact on the environment.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected to
be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company no later than three months after this annual report has been
published.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 77
of this annual report. The Board does not recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the Year (2017: Nil).

The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 80 of this annual report and Note 35 to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At as 30 April 2018, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$37.1 million (2017: approximately HK$96.4 million).
Details of the movements in the distributable reserves during the Year are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AGM

A notice convening the 2018 AGM will be issued and dispatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner required by the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the 2018 AGM, the Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 22
October 2018 to Thursday, 25 October 2018 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the 2018 AGM, the non-registered
Shareholders must lodge all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at Room
2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 October 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 97.8% of the total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 86.9% of the total
purchases.
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For the Year, the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for less than 30% of the total sales.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the
Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 22
to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Guangyin (Chairman)™°* "
Mr. Meng Bo™et2

Mr. Liu GIUOqing(Note 3

Mr. Liu Jiagiang™°?

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung®e#

Mr. Lam Man Wah®°te

Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa™ee®
Mr. He Guangrui®®©”

Mr. Tsang Hok Man9
Mr. Yang Haoju®otes 2and©)
Mr. Yan Yongjian®etes 226
Mr. Huang LeiVotes 2and6)

Independence Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael™°® ¥
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan®°®

Mr. Hu Jinruie 8

Mr. Chong Man Leung™°®¥

Mr. Fung Tat Man®ee®

Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie"te9
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Mr. Meng Guangyin was appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September
2017, as the Chairman on 28 September 2017 and as the CEO on 1 April 2018.

Each of Mr. Meng Bo, Mr. Liu Jiagiang, Mr. Yang Haoju, Mr. Yan Yongjian and
Mr. Huang Lei was appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September 2017.

Mr. Liu Guoqing appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September 2017, as
the CFO on 28 September 2017 and as Co-CEO on 18 October 2017; and was
subsequently re-designated as an Executive Director and the CFO on 1 April
2018.

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung was appointed as an Executive Director, the Vice Chairman
and the COO on 18 October 2017.

Mr. Lam Man Wah resigned as the Chairman and the CEO on 28 September
2017.

Each of Mr. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa, Mr. Tsang Hok Man, Mr. Yang Haoju, Mr. Yan
Yongjian and Mr. Huang Lei resigned as an Executive Director on 28 September
2017.

Mr. He Guangrui was appointed as an Executive Director on 7 September 2017
and as the CEO on 28 September 2017; and was re-designated as an Executive
Director and the Co-CEO on 18 October 2017. He resigned as an Executive
Director and the Co-CEO on 1 April 2018.

Each of Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael, Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Hu Jinrui was
appointed as an INED on 20 September 2017.

Each of Mr. Chong Man Leung, Mr. Fung Tat Man and Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie
resigned as an INED on 28 September 2017.

For the details of movement of Directors during the Year, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Change of Directors and Positions Held with Board
Committees of the Company” of this report of the Directors.

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold

office

only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-

election. Mr. Liao Pin Tsung was appointed as a Director by the Board on
18 October 2017. Thus, he will retire from office as Director and is eligible
to offer himself for re-election at the 2018 AGM.
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Pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors will retire by rotation at each AGM. In addition, code provision
A.4.2 of the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
stipulates that each Director shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years.

Pursuant to article 84(2) of the Articles of Association, the Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the
number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire
and not to offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who
have been the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-elected
Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they otherwise
agree among themselves) be determined by lot. Any Director appointed
by the Board pursuant to article 83(3) shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Director or the number of Directors who are
to retire by the rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael, Mr.
Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Hu Jinrui will retire from office as Directors by
rotation and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the 2018
AGM. Mr. Hu Jinrui will not offer himself for re-election at the 2018 AGM
whereas Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael and Mr. Tian Zhiyuan will offer
themselves for re-election thereat. The Company is in the process of
identifying a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of Mr. Hu Jinrui as an
INED.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. As such, the Company notes that all the INEDs are independent.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND POSITIONS
HELD WITH BOARD COMMITTEES OF THE
COMPANY

In accordance with Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, changes of the
information of the Directors, subsequent to the date of the interim report
of the Company for the six months ended 31 October 2017, required to
be disclosed, are set out below:
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Appointment Date Cessation Date

Name/Positions wE /B ZEBRHY HERH

Mr. Meng Guangyin ZEREE

— Executive Director —HTES 7 September 2017 Z
ZE—+FNAtH g

— Chairman - *E 28 September 2017 —
ZE—tENAZTNH &

— CEO — TREH 1 April 2018 4
ZE-N\F0A—H 7

Mr. Meng Bo BREE

— Executive Director —¥BTES 7 September 2017 -
—E—+FhHAtH s

Mr. Liu Guoging ZIEERE

— Executive Director - HITESE 7 September 2017 —
—E—+FNALtHE Z

— CFO —BHRIKE 28 September 2017 ~
—E-t+tFhAZ+/\H 7

— Co-CEO — BEITBAR 18 October 2017 1 April 2018
ZE—+EF+A+/\H —E-\FWmOAH—H

Mr. Liu Jiagiang 2 mis kst

- Executive Director —HTES 7 September 2017 -
—E—+tFhNALtHE s

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung BmREE 7

— Executive Director, Vice Chairmanand  — $117E = + 8| = f& & 18 October 2017

C00 BEREER ZZ—+tE+ATN\A

Mr. He Guangrui BRSEE

— Executive Director —¥YITEE 7 September 2017 1 April 2018
ZE—+FNAtH ZE-\FHA—H

— CEO — THEH 28 September 2017 18 October 2017
—ZE—tFNAZTN\H ZE—tETAT/\H

— Co-CEO — BEITBAR 18 October 2017 1 April 2018
ZE—+EFt+H+/\H —E-\FHA—H

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael BREAT R4

— INED — BUFHTES 20 September 2017 =
ZE—+FNAZTH <

— chairman of Audit Committee - ERZEEXRE 28 September 2017 4
—E-+tFhAZ+/\H ~

— member of Remuneration Committee  — HMEE &5k 8 28 September 2017 2

—“E-tFAAZTNR
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Appointment Date Cessation Date
Name/Positions ®E/ B ZERY HERY
Mr. Tian Zhiyuan HEREE
— INED - BUFNTES 20 September 2017 <
—E—+FNAZ+H %
— chairman of Remuneration Committee — FHMZE @ X F 28 September 2017 —
ZE—tFENAZT+NH &
— member of Nomination Committee - REZEEKE 28 September 2017 Z
ZE—tFNAZTNH ~
— member of Audit Committee - BEREEBEKE 28 September 2017 -
ZE—+tFENAZ+NH 7
Mr. Hu Jinrui etk
— INED - BUFHTES 20 September 2017 -
—tENAAZFH %
— member of Audit Committee - BERELE@KE 28 September 2017 —
—E—tFENAZ+NH 4
— member of Nomination Committee —REZLEEeKE 28 September 2017 -
—t+tFNAZ+\H ~
Mr. Lam Man Wah M ERE
— Chairman and CEO - IRRITRESH — 28 September 2017
% —tEFNAZ+NA
Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa REBELL
— Executive Director —HITES - 28 September 2017
Z —t+tENAZ+N\R
Mr. Tsang Hok Man BExLE
— Executive Director —HITES - 28 September 2017
~Z —tFAAZTNH
Mr. Fung Tat Man BEXELE
— INED ﬁiﬁm TEE
— chairman of Audit Committee - BREEEER — 28 September 2017
7 —E—+tFNAZ+N\H
— member of Nomination Committee - RRZEEKE & 28 September 2017
7 —tFhAAZ+TN\H
— member of Remuneration Committee FMEEeKE - 28 September 2017

—t+FNAZ+/\H
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Appointment Date Cessation Date
Name/Positions wE /B ZEBRHY HERY
Mr. Chong Man Leung BXREE
— INED - BUFHTES 28 September 2017

—+tENAZ+N\R

— chairman of Remuneration Committee — HMZE & & - 28 September 2017

& ZE—tFEAAZ+NH
— member of Nomination Committee - REZEEKE — 28 September 2017

- —tFNAAZ+NH
— member of Audit Committee - EREZEEKE — 28 September 2017

& —t+tENAZ+N\R
Mr. Lo Wei Kei Wilkie EERESE
— INED - BUHTES — 28 September 2017

7 —tFhNAZTN\H
— chairman of Nomination Committee —RRZEEERFE & 28 September 2017

7 —t+tEFNAZ+N\R
— member of Audit Committee - BREZEeKE — 28 September 2017

7 ZE—+tFNAZ+NH
— member of Remuneration Committee — HZ 8 &k 8 - 28 September 2017

s —tFNAZ+NH

Further details were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 7
September, 20 September, 28 September and 18 October 2017, and 4
April 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary,
independent auditors and other officers shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or any or them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
any potential legal action against the Directors and senior management in
respect of potential legal actions that may be incurred in the course of
performing their duties.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 22 to 25 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Meng Guangyin, Mr. Meng
Bo, Mr. Liu Guoging, Mr. Liu Jiagiang and Mr. Liao Pin Tsung has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term of
one year, which may be terminated by not less than one month’s notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

For Mr. Meng Guangyin, Mr. Meng Bo, Mr. Liu Guoging and Mr. Liu
Jiagiang, their service agreements commenced on 7 September 2017,
and for Mr. Liao Pin Tsung, his service agreement commenced on 18
October 2017.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2018 AGM has
an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific term of one year, but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office.

Each of the INEDs, namely Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael, Mr. Tian Zhiyuan
and Mr. Hu Jinrui, has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of one year commencing on 20 September
2017, and such appointment letters may be terminated by not less than
one month notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the Year are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to
the Financial Statements respectively. The remuneration packages of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board as described on pages 37 and 38 of the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 April 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its specified undertakings or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO, were as follows:

EERTEBEFMALZ
%

AEEEERRAA RS THATIRAFTE
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AR 5 R BB R B XV AR 5 3562 15 7R
FEzECMzBamsoRBMT

Percentage of

Number of shareholding

Shares interest in the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company

LR NN g

Es=pE B REME EEROHE Aok

Mr. Meng Guangyin Interest in a controlled corporation (Note) 600,000,000 75%

HERE S WEEEE Z (M i) 600,000,000 75%
Notes : Kiit -

1. Mr. Meng Guangyin, the Chairman, CEO and an Executive Director, beneficially 1. FEREE(FFE THREZEH{TES)E

owned 100% of the issued Share capital of Prosper One, being the holding
company of the Company, and was, therefore, deemed to have an interest in
600,000,000 Shares held by Prosper One by virtue of the SFO. Mr. Meng
Guangyin is the sole director of Prosper One.

2. The percentage of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table
above is calculated on the basis of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 April
2018.

3. All interests stated above represent long positions.

mHEAEE — (KRB ZERRAE)100%E 1T
BA - AHBREESRPE IMEJ%WEP%EAEE

— 7 2.600,000,000 f% A% 17 7 B 4 x5 -

BREEBE—2H—ES -

2. FERATERRRABREED L IRER T
— \F M A =+ BB % 17800,000,000 % & 1

SHE -

3. LumMERSEHR/ER -



E-BEBRERBERLAT —T-N\FER

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SRS (B)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2018, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or (c) pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at 30 April 2018, the following
entity (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) and
had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

BEXFBEEN R_F-N\FOA=
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Percentage of

Number of shareholding
Shares interest in the
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company
EARTRE
IR A 5 EEMtE EERo#E B
Prosper One (Note) Beneficial owner 600,000,000 75%
E— (i) BEXBEAA 600,000,000 75%
Notes: st -
1. Prosper One was beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Meng Guangyin. 1. EHEERELEEREEEE -
2. The percentage of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table 2. FRIAIRERRGBEEASLLIRER T
above is calculated on the basis of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 April — //\E M A =+ H B % 17800,000,000 f% & {7
2018. 1,

3. All interests stated above represent long positions.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2018, so far as the Directors or
chief executive of the Company are aware, no other persons (other than
a Director or the chief executive of the Company) or entities had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein.

As at the date of this annual report, no Shareholders have agreed to
waive or waived any dividends.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the management
of the Company and their respective associates that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

On 21 April 2015, the Company entered into a non-competition deed (the
“Non-Competition Deed”) with each of the then controlling
Shareholders, namely Mr. Lam Man Wah, Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa and Tic
Tac Investment Holdings Limited (collectively, the “Covenantors”) and
his/her associates. Pursuant to the Non-Competition Deed, each of the
Covenantors irrevocably and unconditionally, jointly and severally,
covenanted and undertook with the Company that each of the
Covenantors shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its close
associates shall, directly or indirectly, establish, invest, involve in, engage
in, manage, operate or otherwise hold any right or interest, directly or
indirectly, in any business is or may be in competition with the business
carried out by the Group, save and except for Mr. Lam Man Wah'’s
existing interests in two companies non-wholly owned by him. For the
avoidance of doubt, each of the Covenantors shall not, and shall procure
that none of his/her/its close associates shall, be involved in the
management and operation of those two companies. The Non-
Competition Deed was not in force and in effect upon the completion of
the change of controlling Shareholder to Prosper One on 15 August
2017. Please refer to the paragraph “Change of Controlling Shareholder”
on p.13 of this annual report for further details.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which were subject to
the reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the Year are set out
in Note 32 to the Financial Statements. None of the related party
transactions as disclosed in Note 32 to the Financial Statements
constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or controlling shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 32 to the
Financial Statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem its listed securities nor did the Company or
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at least 25% of the issued
Shares in public hands) during the Year and thereafter up to the date of
this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the service contracts of the Executive Directors)
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.
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ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 31 May 2018, the Company and Macquarie Bank Limited (the
“Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (as supplemented
by the amendment agreement dated 20 June 2018 and the second
amendment agreement dated 4 July 2018) (collectively, the “Subscription
Agreements”), pursuant to which the Company had conditionally agreed
to issue, and the Subscriber had conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
the 0.8% convertible notes in a principal amount of up to HK$80,000,000
due 2019 (the “Notes”) under a specific mandate granted by the
Shareholders at an EGM held on 26 July 2018. The Notes comprise two
tranches. Each tranche will be in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$40,000,000. Based on the Floor Price of HK$0.80 (as defined in the
Subscription Agreements), the maximum total number of ordinary Shares
to be issued pursuant to the exercise of conversion rights attached to the
Notes (the “New Shares”) shall be 100,000,000. The Floor Price is
subject to adjustment.

Each Note entitles the holder of the Note to convert the Note into New
Shares at any time during the Conversion Period (as defined in the
Subscription Agreements) at the Conversion Price (as defined in the
Subscription Agreements), provided that no Conversion Right may be
exercised at a Conversion Price lower than the Floor Price.

If the Subscriber subscribes for both tranches of the Notes, the estimated
net proceeds of HK$75.8 million from the issue of the Notes will be used
for (i) investing in Lithium Chile Inc., (i) injecting capital into a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company for its purchase of two sets of fertilizer
production equipment, and (i) enhancing the general working capital of
the Group.

If the Subscriber subscribes only for the first tranche of Notes, the
estimated net proceeds of HK$36.6 million from the issue of the Notes
will be used for (i) investing in Lithium Chile Inc. and (i) injecting capital
into a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company for its purchase of two
sets of fertilizer production equipment.

On 26 July 2018, the Company passed an ordinary resolution which
generally and unconditionally approved, ratified and confirmed the
Subscription Agreements.

For definitions and further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 31 May, 20 June, 29 June, 4 July, 26 July and 31
July 2018 and circular dated 11 July 2018.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders on 21 April
2015 (the"Adoption Date”) for the primary purpose of providing eligible
participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company
and to motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees,
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), advisors, consultants of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued under the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (excluding options lapsed
pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company) must
not exceed 80,000,000, representing approximately 10% of the issued
Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date. On 4 January 2018, the
Company granted to certain eligible participants options, which were
subject to, among others, a refreshment of the scheme mandate limit for
the Scheme (the “Refreshment”). The resolution concerning the
Refreshment was duly passed by the Shareholders at an EGM held on
25 January 2018.

As the share options were not successfully granted in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Scheme, no share options were granted
and outstanding as at 30 April 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections of “Issue of Convertible Notes” and
“Share Option Scheme”, the Company has not entered into other equity-
linked agreements during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares of the Company.
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MATERIAL EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the Financial Statements for the Year set
out in this annual report, the Group did not have any other material
subsequent event after the reporting period and up to the date of this
annual report.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee had reviewed this annual report (including the
audited Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of
the Company for the Year and had approved the presentation of the
same to the Board for approval. Members of the Audit Committee were
of the opinion that the Financial Statements, the results announcement
and this annual report had been prepared in compliance with the
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory provisions and that an adequate disclosure had been made.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Financial Statements have been audited by Deloitte, the Independent
Auditors, which will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2018 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte as the Independent Auditors until the conclusion of the next AGM
and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON
WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.prosperoneintl.com.

By order of the Board

Meng Guangyin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 July 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B % B ETER S

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PROSPER ONE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosper One
International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 77
to 155, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 April 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B RHENRS (18)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FARETNER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, FAREAASTESRERERANEEHE - 7
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial A¥ ANEIGEMEHRENBTRAEZTEN
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed inthe EH - ELZHEEERKMET B EEE
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, #HHEX LK EHEERBHETEIELN - KR+
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate @ ¥ iE L E=TEREEFHEZR -

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRESER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNAREBEFHEERARETER

Valuation and impairment of inventories

FEMGEREE

Refer to notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial
Statements
ZIRMEE A R EM iF4 217

We identified valuation and impairment of inventories as a
key audit matter because the balance of inventories
was significant and the assessment of which involved
significant estimation of uncertainty.

BB FERENREZRNRBRESEE R
EEERBBEAR BEFME P RERTHEEM
&t e

During the year, retail and wholesale of watches in Hong
Kong remained the main business of the Group which
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
conditions. The Group had inventories of approximately
HK$75,794,000 and an allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$23,836,000 as at 30 April 2018.

FA - REBETHREZERBEBENE E&
MEEER MBEETERBEIIEEEST XK
RS AESNTE R/ \FEHA=T
H: ESBEHEBAT57940008 THHFEERLD
23,836,000/ LY 17 B o

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories included:

BZMEHEEBRMETFERENGENEFREFEE

e Understanding and evaluating the appropriateness of the
basis used by the management in estimating the level of
inventory allowance by considering the inventory aging as
at 30 April 2018, and subsequent sales after 30 April 2018;

s BMEIMEREBRLERNR_Z-/\FOA=1THZ
FERERE-_Z-N\FOA=TREZEEHE AR
AFERESHMEAKEBENES L
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) R ETEIE @

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERENSE BN ARBEFFEEREERNSE

In estimating the impairment of inventories, it is the e Examining the basis of management policy relating to
Group’s policy to review the net realisable value of allowance for slow-moving inventories;

inventories periodically with reference to aging analysis, s BEMFHFERBEE MM EEEEIKE
seasonality and current market conditions. These

assessments are subject to uncertainties arising from e Assessing and examining the assumptions and estimates
changes in market trends, customer tastes and current applied by management in determining the allowance for
business environment. slow-moving inventories; and

EfAFERER > EXENBEREZ2ZEREKS s AL EEEREAEE T FEHFERBRMEANR
-ZHERBAIMAERERFENAIERF =M E R

'TE o EZ%§$1$§Fﬁ_i%ﬁ%§§b v ’E}E’ﬁ:ﬂ]ﬂﬂi ﬁﬁﬁ/{&gﬁﬁ
EBBRESRNTREERTE -

e Comparing the carrying amount of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to their net realisable value through review of
subsequent sales. Where there are no subsequent sales of
the respective inventories subsequent to the year end date,
we challenged management on the assumptions and basis
applied to estimate the net realisable value of the
inventories, corroborating explanations with aging,
consumer demand and market trends of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.

s BABEHRBHENTFTEREEMAALAER FEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

AREFTEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNARBEFTEERARETER

Provision for onerous operating leases

Refer to notes 4 and 21 (c) to the consolidated financial
statements
ZIRMAF BB HmE N T4 %21(c)

We identified provision for onerous operating leases as a
key audit matter because it requires significant
management judgement in estimating operating
performance of the outlets. The Group has entered into
several operating lease contracts for its retail outlets. At
the end of each reporting period, management
performs assessments of the lease contracts for retall
outlets with non-cancellable elements in order to
identify any provision for onerous operating leases is
necessary. The assessment is to identify and estimate
the unavoidable costs of meeting lease obligations that
may exceed economic benefits to be received. Based
on their best estimates, management is of the view that
a provision of HK$2,115,000 should be recognised as
at 30 April 2018.

BB EEREHERER ABREFTE R
HEfAEHCERNTEEAEEE G - &
SEEATERAMI L ZEKEHESRN NS
BRERK ERBHAEAETARHEERNTER
HEEERETTE UBECREATEREEL
SHEELEAEE - FEFEEERN LA
ARt TFRBREBEMNEMN A #RNEER
ENER BRERENKEMLT BEEEARER
ZE-)\FHE A=+ B ##R2,115,000/8 TTE B 4 -

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
of the provision of onerous operating leases included:

BHEBERBMETEEREHERBTHNETR
Fr B 4%

e Understanding and evaluating management process and
controls over the preparation of cash flow forecasts;

s ERLFMEHRSAREBUNERRERIEH

e Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used by the management;

s HEBEEEMAMBMETZNIRE L

e FEvaluating the key assumptions used in preparing the
discounted cash flow analysis, including the discount rate,
the assumptions applied in estimating the future
performance of the retail outlets, the revenue growth rate,
rentals, overheads and other operating cost of running the
outlets; and

s HMERMEUMBRACRESMAANARBRR(BER
BR) A TERHARRREMARR RAEER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
HRETER

FAREFTEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BERNARBFAHEERARETEE

Management prepared discounted cash flow analysis on
the retail outlets with negative earnings before tax and
interest. These calculations involved significant
management judgement in relation to the assumptions
used including the revenue growth rate, rental, °
overheads and other operating cost of running the
outlets

ERBHBESARR (R EBERMNBINTER
HRAEMRBESNEDNT - ZEFESREHKA
BRE He MERX REEREHNEMEERK
REMKARENEREIEE A -

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2017
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion
on those statements on 27 July 2017.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

e Assessing the reasonableness of any provision for onerous
operating leases by comparing estimations and actual
results with reference to the subsequent performance of
the retail outlets.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is David Leung Ho Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

30 July 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FREeEENEHNEZENER

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 HZE_-_ZE—N\FWNA=F+HILFE

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
BZE HE
—E-N\F —E—tF
A=1HIE Ry =N
FE FE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAT
Revenue Wz 5 315,501 283,211
Cost of sales $HE AR (211,409) (192,893)
Gross profit EF 104,092 90,318
Other income AN 7 53 9
Selling and distribution costs $HE & KR (92,349) (102,817)
Administrative expenses THRX (26,902) (15,627)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 8 (6572 (441)
Loss before tax bR AT S 18 9 (15,678) (28,558)
Income tax (expense) credit Frisfi () K% 10 (4,570) 867
Loss for the year attributable to owners of KAREB AEBLTE
the Company [E518 (20,248) (27,691)
Other comprehensive expense Hit2mEMAZ
ltem that maybe reclassified subsequently to EsHHoEEETEE
profit or loss
— Exchange differences arising from translation — — # & i 4|\ 3 7 pfr 2 4
of foreign operations ol a7 7
Total comprehensive expense for the year KNaEBEABIEEE
attributable the owners of the Company >HEMAXBE (20,265) (27,691)
Loss per share — basic and diluted GREE - EAREE
(HK cents per share) €=3:%:% () 14 (2.53) (3.46)
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O CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRARNRK

At30April2018 RZZE—N\FWNWA=+H

g M
TSR

30/04/2018 30/04/2017

—E-N\F —E—tF
mMA=+AH MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT 5 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEK&E 15 6,197 6,258
Rental deposits HEZS 18 1,381 12,643
Deferred tax assets EETIBE E 16 1,924 2,989
9,502 21,890
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 17 51,958 97,893
Trade receivables, other receivables and EWE S HIE - Hib
prepayments FE Uk SRR I TR A BOE 18 99,620 7,442
Tax recoverable A] U [B] 75 18 1,896 7,800
Cash and cash equivalents BehIRE&EEY 20 54,603 37,071
208,077 150,206
Total assets BEE 217,579 172,096
Capital and reserves IR A T
Share capital Bg 7z 24 8,000 8,000
Reserves i 102,647 122,912

Total equity ks 110,647 130,912




At 30 Ap

E-BEREZERERAR —T-\F5R
CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
me B IRRE (E)

2018 M-_ZE—N\FWMA=+H

30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
A=+H mA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E F#B T FET

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Provision for other liabilities and charges HimaEdEhs HEE 21 793 1,653
Obligations under finance leases mEHEEMT 23 342 202
1,135 1,855

Current liabilities mEaE

Trade and other payables B 5 M EMFE IR 21 99,093 23,451
Bank loans BITER 22 5,806 15,575
Obligations under finance leases BMEMERMT 23 485 236
Tax liabilities HMIEE & 413 67
105,797 39,329
Total liabilities BERE 106,932 41,184
Total equity and liabilities Rk AaE 217,579 172,096

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 155 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 July 2018 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Meng Guangyin
BEREE
Director

BEF

FBITENBBZZERFREAVBBRRERE
—N\FtA=t+HhEEe EREET
BEOWHNUNTREESE -

Mr. Liu Guoging

AEELEE
Director

EF

)
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN €QUITY

REOEREBIR

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 B Z=—ZT—N\FWA=+HILFE

Share Share Capital ~ Translation ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve  profits (losses) equity
RiHEF
g R4 HE EXGHE EXf#EE (B8]) RZAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TET THEL FHET THEL THEL
(Note)
(Hrzt)
Balance at 1 May 2016 RZE—RF
RA—BH&% 8,000 118,368 24,094 — 8,141 158,603
Total comprehensive expense 2 H B % 44
Loss for the year FRER & 7 7~ 2 (27,691) (27,691)
Balance at 30 April 2017 RZE—+%F
MA =+ A 8,000 118,368 24,004 — (19,550) 130912
Total comprehensive expense 2 EAB 4%
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (20,248) (20,248)
Exchange differences arising on & /8 90 15 P EE A )
translation of foreign ERER
operations < Z o 17 < (17)
Total comprehensive expense 2 E X B8 - - - 17) (20,248) (20,265)
Balance at 30 April 2018 RZE-N\%F
mA=+HMES 8,000 118,368 24,004 (17) (39,798) 110,647
Note: et -

The balance of capital reserve comprises the following:

On 23 June 2011, Mr. Lam Man Wah (“Mr. Lam”), one of the Previous Controlling
Shareholders of the Company as defined in note 1, acquired the non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary from an independent third party. The difference between the fair value of
the equity interests acquired and the consideration paid amounting to HK$1,610,000 was
credited to the capital reserve.

On 31 October 2014, Mr. Lam agreed to waive part of its lending to the Group. The
waived amount of HK$14,282,000 was credited to the capital reserve.

On 9 April 2015, the Company allotted and issued 5,833 and 94,166 of its shares to Ms.
Ma Lili (“Ms. Ma”) and Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited, a company owned by the
Previous Controlling Shareholders , to acquire their respective shareholding interests in
the group subsidiaries.

As a result, a balance of HK$3,902,000 was credited to the capital reserve representing
the difference between the carrying value of the non-controlling interest of Jenus Top
International Limited acquired over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange thereof. The combined share capital of the other group subsidiaries
of HK$4,300,000 was reclassified to capital reserve upon the completion of the group
reorganisation.

EARBEHREBEATSE:

R-ZB——FEXAZ+=B MXELEETHE
E1 BMREIMACARRER —BATERBRR)E
—BBUE=HIRE-HNEB AR Z IR AERS -
PR R e e R E 2 A A FEZ=%1,610,000
EILB AT AR A -

RZZE-—NE+A=+—B MELERERREME
FTAREEZEHDER - EE R FIE14,282,000/8 T E
FABARGEE -

RZE—RAFWMANA  AA R A% &k317H5,833
R Ro41e6lR B FHFAMAMEZ T HF L)) kA
ERELBRERAR(—HEHIEERBREREEZA
A) NKRBHRESAREENRB AR ZRERESS -

A Ik - 51 A B AR 2 4 #:3,902,00078 T 15 BT B
ZHEBEBRERAREEREZREAEBLARR]
ARBMBTZRAEBEzZF HhEEHEA
A) 2 MR AN 4,300,000 TN S B EATHRERE
FDEEERRE-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mESRE

Ny <

N

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 EZ =T —N\FWUWA=+THLFE

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
BZE HE
—E-N\F —E—tF
A=+ HIE Rapes=Nls
FE FE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operating activities KR E
Loss before tax B LA 5 18 (15,678) (28,558)
Adjustments for: AT ZIBERE -
Finance costs Bl& Bk 7R 572 441
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BERRETE 2,674 4,908
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment YE - BENERERE
E1a 85 4,362
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BEREE
U =% (61) g
Allowance for write-down of inventories recognised BEERMRTERHE 1,120 6,912
Provision for reinstatement costs recognised BRERISE R A 399 &
Provision for onerous operating leases recognised EHEREELLEHE
g 321 6,237
Operating cash flows before movements in EEReRE (Rt REE
working capital Ee8H) (10,558) (5,698)
Decrease in inventories FERL 44,815 13,200
Increase in trade receivables, other receivables and FEWE S50 - Hib g
prepayments SRIA N B 3RTE 18 0 (80,933) (627)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 K H A0 TE A FRIEE BN
GRL) 74,062 (6,830)
Cash generated from operations R TSI S 27,386 145
Income tax paid ERAER (796) (1,664)
Income tax refund FIr 15 B3R 5K 3,541 g
Net cash from (used in) operating activities KEEEME(TR)RE
AR 30,131 (1,519)
Investing activities "EEE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE WEREE (1,888) (1,289
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYE BENZE
equipment Fr 1S 318 95 g
Net cash used in investing activities HEFHMAMNIIR S FE (1,793) (1,289)

@
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
moRETMEXR (B)

Forthe yearended 30 April 2018 #HZEZ—ZZT— N\FWA=F+HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
BZE HZE
—T-NF —E—+tF
A=1HIL Ry =N

FE FE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAET
Financing activities &R E

New bank loans raised FESRITER 44,845 22,236
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (54,614) (23,461)
Repayment of principal elements of a finance lease BEREEENETLHS (465) (229)
Interest paid EATF 2 (572) (441)
Net cash used in financing activities BEESMANIIR S FE (10,806) (1,895)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents IR & & IR & S {E WAL N
O 2) 58 17,532 (4,703)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year F{I8IR & RIREEEY 37,071 41,774

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, FRNBENEEEED
Represented by bank balances and cash Bl iR1THEB RIS 54,603 37,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R EE IR R I 52X

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 EZ =T —N\FWUWA=+THLFE

GENERAL

Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as “Tic Tac International Holdings Company Limited”) (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

On 28 July 2017, Prosper One Enterprises Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Meng Guangyin, entered into the sales and purchase
agreement with Tic Tac Investment Holdings Company Limited, a
company owned by Mr. Lam Man Wah and his spouse, Ms. Chan
Ka Yee, Elsa (hereinafter referred to as the “Previous Controlling
Shareholders”) for acquiring 70.625% interests of the Company at
a consideration of HK$534,375,000. The transfer of the shares was
completed on 15 August 2017. Accordingly, Mr. Meng Guangyin
became the new ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 26 October 2017, the English name of
the Company has been changed from “Tic Tac International
Holdings Company Limited” (“/&:EBIFER B R A F]") to “Prosper
One International Holdings Company Limited” (“& —EIFRIZIZ AR
NN

In the opinions of the director, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Prosper One Enterprises Limited and its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Meng Guangyin, who is also the Chairman
and executive Director of the Company. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

—REH

B -BEREBRER AR (A BEEE
BERERER2A]DTARA]) /R
MEBEEMKLZ EMAERRAR
EBROREBEBBAERXRSMARAA L
H o

RZBE—+F+A-+N\B HEE
RELE2BERBLE —EBRAF
BOREREERER AR (—HEHBMK
NELSERHEBBREEZ LT (AT
BRI RDEEZAA)ETL
EE WS WK R F70.625% 4
%5 R 1B A534,375,00078 JT o MR 1) 8=
BRZE—tFN\NAt+HHEEK - E
b ZERLEKRBEAAB ZFHHEK
PERE PR -

BEARAEZZE—tEF+AZ+
HREITZERREENAEG F@iBz—
BERFNRARBER ARAlzEXEZEAR
[ Tic Tac International Holdings Company
Limited | (DB ZEBEKRER AR QA E
2 7/ [ Prosper One International Holdings
Company Limited | (['E —BIBE IR B R
RA) -

EERE ARAIZEEERRAGA
E-EARAF ZRARAZHKEE
BARBEREEA BARARE Z
TERVTEST ARzl E
Bz $ 31 % Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PRI (18)

For the year ended 30 April 2018 EHZE —=

1.

—NFENA=THILFE

GENERAL (Continued)

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are engaged in the retail and wholesale of watches in
Hong Kong, and sales and trading of fertilizers raw materials,
fertilizers products and public consumption products. The address
of its principal place of business is Unit 4205, No. 1 Harbour Road,
Convention Plaza Office Tower, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

—RER @

ARARENBARIASEE]) 22X
EEBRARBEBLETHETE R H
AEEMER EHERRARBE
MERZHERE S HXTBEXW

NN BEREETSEBIREREES
PR KIBA205F ©

BHMBHRENARBZNEEEE
25 -

Sl _TF

FERAFHE REIETEEE
BREEA(TEREYHR
HEA )
ﬁﬁigﬁﬁ$H2§%M
B EERZIEE]

AEEERAFEEREATIASE
BeFdmag((FESFMAE]) MR
Mz BEMBRELERZEF] -

BB g &R RETE
ENEAC- TR
BB EER PAREHEIRHER
F1HRUERTAR) LBEHEREE
BEMBGREEL ff?%:%*,@fﬁ%
125 (EFTA) - NFEH
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Rz F R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B R My 5F (18)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 HEZE=—ZT—N\FWNA=THILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (i)
the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; (v) non-cash flows from financing activities; and (vi) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these
items is provided in note 31. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 31, the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

BT E

1& nT EHBETER

$%E%$¢F§mﬁﬁﬁﬁbﬁ°
ZEEFEREREHEVBRRRE
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BB & Al Sl H fh ZE TG P d EE )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PRI (18)

For the year ended 30 April 2018 EHZE —=

—NFENA=THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations

that have been issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(FRIC)-Int 22

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint VVenture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property"

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M B MER M AL (1)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 HEZE=—ZT—N\FWNA=THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
that have been issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
revised HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 B EZE-_T—N\FMNHA=THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
that have been issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 30 April 2018, the directors of the Company
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

° Loan and receivables, apart from bills receivables, carried at
amortised cost as disclosed in note 18: these are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial
assets will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9; and

° Bills receivables as disclosed in note 18 were endorsed to
suppliers as prepayments for merchandises. The contractual
terms of such bills receivables give rise to cash flows that are
not solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and therefore would be subsequently
measured at fair value with fair value gains or losses to be
recognised in profit or loss under HKFRS 9.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
that have been issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same bases as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result
in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

The impairment requirements are applied retrospectively by
adjusting the opening retained earnings at 1 May 2018, with no
restatement to prior periods. The directors of the Company do not
intend to restate comparative information for the application of
HKFRS 9 when preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ending 30 April 2019.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model was to be applied by the Group, there
would be no material difference between the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as at 1 May
2018 and the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39
mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on trade
receivables, other receivables, amount due from related parties and
deposits.
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For the year ended 30 April 2018 EHZE —=
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
that have been issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

] Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
that have been issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts
of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of
-use asset and corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
that have been issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents other operating lease payments as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of this kind of asset depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented
if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
that have been issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As set out in note 28, the total operating lease commitment of the
Group in respect of rented premises as at 30 April 2018 amounted
to HK$30,080,000, in which HK$27,780,000 were with original
lease term over one year. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Under
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short term leases. The
combination of straight-line depreciation of the right-to-use asset
and the effective interest rate method applied to the lease liability
will result in a higher total charge to the profit or loss in the initial
years of the lease, and decreasing expenses during the latter part
of the lease term, but there is no impact on the total expenses
recognised over the lease term. The directors of the Company
anticipate that upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group’s net
assets would decrease, and there would be no material impact on
the financial performance of the Group. These estimates are based
on accounting policies, assumptions, judgements and estimation.
techniques that remain subject to change until the Group finalises
its financial statements for the year ending 30 April 2019.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$18,124,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS 17 applied. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be included
in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income and commission income are recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised
and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to
exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash- generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 30 April 2018 EHZE —=
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 60 days, observable changes in local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and bank
loans) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised.

Principal versus agent considerations for trading of
fertilizers and other products

In determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or as an
agent in the sales of goods and services requires judgement and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances. In evaluation
of the Group acting as a principal or an agent, the Group considers
whether it obtains control of the goods and if necessary, also
considers individually or in combination, whether the Group is
primarily responsible for fulfilling the contracts, is subject to
inventory risk, has discretion in establishing prices for the goods
and services. Significant judgement is required when inventory risk
is not significant. Having considered the relevant facts and
circumstances, management considers that the Group does not
obtain control for trading of the fertilizers and other products.
Accordingly, the Group is acting as an agent for sale and trading of
fertilizers and other products and the corresponding revenue is
presented on a net basis.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. As at 30 April 2018, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment was HK$6,197,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$5,197,000) (2017:
HK$6,258,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$5,112,000)).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly in response to change in market trends,
customer tastes and business environment. The Group will
reassess the estimations by the end of the reporting period. As at
30 April 2018, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$51,958,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$23,836,000) (2017: HK$97,893,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$22,717,000)).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for onerous operating leases

Onerous operating leases are operating leases in which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the operating
leases exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least
net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost
of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure
to fulfil it. Management performs assessment on retail outlets with
non-cancellable clause in the respective agreements for any
provision for onerous operating leases at the end of each reporting
period. As at 30 April 2018, the carrying amount of provision for
onerous operating leases was HK$2,115,000) (2017:
HK$8,598,000).
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5.

()

—NFOA=1THILFE

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

5. W=

AEEBFRZWSEDTOT

Year ended Year ended

30/04/2018 30/04/2017

BZE HE

—E2-N\F Tt F

A=+HI1E Rupks =N

FE FE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Sales of merchandise 7 on 8 & 307,015 280,858
Service income AR 75 U A 2,364 2,353
Commission income s WA 6,122 £
315,501 283,211

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the wholesale and retail of
watches in Hong Kong since its date of incorporation. During the
year, the Group also engaged in sales and trading of high-end
biological fertilizers, fertilizers raw materials and public consumption
products (collectively referred to as “Trading of fertilizers and other
products”).

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, who are
the chief operating decision makers (“CODM”) of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
are focused on three main operations of the Group identified in
accordance with the business nature and the size of the operations.

Specifically, the reportable segments of the Group under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

o Retail business of watches (“Retail”) — retail of multi brands
of watches in Hong Kong

7 EPE R
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

o Wholesalers business of watches (“Wholesale”) — wholesale
of multi brands of watches in Hong Kong

o Trading of fertilizers and other products (“Trading”) — trading
of fertilizers, fertilizers raw materials and public consumption
products

There are no significant sales or other transactions among the
segments.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating and reportable segment for the two years:

For the year ended 30 April 2018

Retail Whol
Z2E

HK$’000 HK$’000

esale

#3®

FTER TERT

o EF @

s MRMBEB(HED-NEFE
HE 3 2 {8 i b8 2 R %

e EMRKHEMERZESTE
1)~ B# - BHRE RAKRHE
BEHEMZES

DEALTEERNHEREMR S °

u&ﬁ&%l“a

e
AEBRMEFERZLEE R 23R
DEbEl Sz W M EE ST

N

BE-Z-\FHNA=+tHLEE

Trading Elimination Total
5 # 85 et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FExT FHE T

Revenue Wz
External sales SN ER 3 & 304,162 2,853 — — 307,015
External service AR AR 75 U A
income 2,361 3 — - 2,364
External commission  4h 2B 4 U A
income - - 6,122 — 6,122
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE - 2,704 — (2,704) —
306,523 5,560 6,122 (2,704) 315,501
Segment (loss) profit 73 & (E518) Y 7 (6,544) 660 3,436 - (2,448)
Finance costs B B R (572)
Unallocated group AoREERE
expenses (12,658)
Loss before tax MR BIEE (15,678)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 30 April 2017

7 EE R @
DEW SR ESE @
BE-T-—tamA=tALEE

Retail Wholesale Elimination Total

TE #t % Es! 45T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T T FET FHET

Revenue W=

External sales G ER 279,298 1,560 — 280,858
External service income A2 AR 75 U A 2,348 5 4 2,353
Inter-segment sales DEEEE 487 2,320 (2,807) 4
282,133 3,885 (2,807) 283,211
Segment (loss) profit 5 &0 (B 18) & 71 (25,386) 11 2 (25,375)
Finance costs B & Ak AR (441)
Unallocated group expenses 7k 7 Bid £ B 5 52 (2,742)
Loss before tax R % Al B 18 (28,558)

Sales between segments are carried out at terms mutually-agreed
between the parties involved in transactions. The revenue from
external parties reported to the executive directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

No segment assets and liabilities information is provided as no such
information is regularly provided to the CODM of the Group on
making decision for resources allocation and performance
assessment.

DEEEENRIRZXH2ETTHEA
WEZIRFET RATEFERZ
SNERET R T W iR AR S B R E A
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEXE @
Segment revenues and results (Continued) 2B R R A ()
Geographical information i 38 E B
During the year, the Group’s operation is mainly located in the FR RNEBZEBHETEMAFEA
People’s Republic of China (PRC”) and Hong Kong. The Group’s REMB(THR]) REE - NEBEIZE
revenue by geographical location of customers are detailed below: EEMEBNEEI > ZWRFBOT
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
PRC Fh 6,122 —
Hong Kong & 309,379 283,211
Total #Et 315,501 283,211
The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers in PRC and REB 7IWFZFERaITEEE B
Hong Kong. The non-current assets of the Group are located in Z2EP -KREBZIIERHEEMRE
Hong Kong. There are no single external customers who HomMEEERNTESE —IILEET
contributed more than 10% revenue of the Group for both years. BAAREBEBIE10% 2 2 -
Other disclosures Hfth I 5=
For the year ended 30 April 2018 BE-ZE-N\ENA=+HLEE

Retail Wholesale Trading Total
g6 2% B3 et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FERT FET

Addition to non-current ANBIERBEE

assets 2,742 - - 2,742
Depreciation of property, Y% -« HiE & &

plant and equipment e 2,667 - 7 2,674
Gain on disposal of property, X E W% - B E &

plant and equipment F 2 W 51 - - 51
Allowance (reversal) for ERZBMRTEZ

write-down of inventories & (@)

recognised 1,263 (143) - 1,120
Impairment loss on property, B R W  HE

plant and equipment REHEREREE

recognised 85 - - 85
Provision for onerous ERREELE

operating leases HERE

recognised 321 - — 321
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Other disclosures (Continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2017

6. DEER @

o EB U = I A )
H i & (@)

N

BE-FT-—tFNA=+tHLEE

Retail Wholesale Total
e 2 Et
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FATT FAT
Addition to non-current assets NEIERHEE 1,289 — 1,289
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - iE k& EITE
equipment 4,908 = 4,908
Allowance for write-down of ERRAMBREE 2 &
inventories recognised 5,938 974 6,912
Impairment loss on property, plant B R % BKE &
and equipment recognised BB R AEREE 4,362 — 4,362
Provision for onerous operating ERREELEHER
leases recognised 6,237 — 6,237
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HibA
Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
BZE HZE
—E-N\F —T—+tfF
A=+ HIE Ry =N
FE FE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&ExT FAT
Foreign exchange gain P& H W x5 2 9
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  WMEMREBEKZE
equipment 51 7
53 9
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For the year ended 30 April 2018 & ZE —

8.

—E-N\FEA=TRHILEFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. mi&E A
Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
Bz H=E
—E-N\F —EB—+F
A =1 HIE RueprS =N
FE FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&ET FHET
Interest on bank loans B A B 543 424
Finance lease charges nﬂ éf %ﬂ =9 29 17
Total =t 572 441
LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BREAEE
Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
Bz H=E
—B-N\F B
A=1HI1E Rep =N
FE FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Loss before tax has been arrived at after MR EB IR AT RIA
charging: ‘IS
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)2% ~ = MR EITE 2,674 4,908
Auditors’ remuneration % B B 35 B 2,033 571
Provision for onerous operating leases ERREELEHERE
recognised 321 6,237
Provision for reinstatement costs recognised & R (& 18 Bk AN 45 399 o
Impairment loss on property, plant and EERWE  BEL&ERE
equipment recognised 518 85 4,362
Director’s remuneration (note 12) EEHM(HE12) 8,655 5,464
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits 4 TE R HEME T 7 H
of other staff 1E B @A 26,819 26,832
Retirement benefit scheme contribution of Hh B T 7B KE a8l ¢ 3
other staff 1,063 1,145
Total staff costs B TR AR%E 36,537 33,441
Allowance for write-down of inventories D RERAMBRTEE B G
recognhised 1,120 6,912
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RERZ 2 FERKK 210,289 185,981
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

10. FRIEHAX (ER)

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
8= Bz
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
MA=+HiE Qup=iet =Ny
FE FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current taxation B B 5 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFER 372 115
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMSH 846 Z
1,218 115
Under provision for prior years BEFEEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH 2,287 7
Deferred taxation (note 16) RIEFLIE (M 7E16) 1,065 (982)
4,570 (867)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

B F E 2 b A SRR A B 1216.5%
IBERABFBNEH

REFEARKME T ERGEHRZE
(TEEAEREDREXEAEHREE
A MEFEZFEHREBRAZ
B 7325% o
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

10. FRIBEHAX (ER) @

REEzMEBEIHAEEEER A
fth 2 T W a2k 2 R AT E R EEE 0
T

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
Bz BHE
—Z2-N\F ZE—tF
A =181 Ry =N
FE FE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
Loss before tax FrFE AT 18 (15,678) (28,558)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% IR AN Fr 15 5 & 16.5% =+ & >
(2017: 16.5%) (note) RBE(ZZ—tF :16.5%)
(K1 3%) (2,587) (4,712)
Tax effects of: UWTEBEZHGETE
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes IRk 2,716 201
Tax losses not recognised RERTIERE 1,903 3,644
Under provision for prior years BREFERE 2,287 44
Different tax rate of subsidiaries WERaE .z TR R 251 %4
Income tax expense (credit) B R (%) 4,570 (867)

Note: The domestic tax rate, which is the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate, in the
jurisdiction where the operation of the Group substantially based is used.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the years ended 30 April 2018 and 2017, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

11.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance,
is as follows:

Name of director EEf3 Fees Salaries
ne e

HK$'000 FAL 2018 2017 2018 2017
SE-NF el — T - )\ F el —

12.

EERFETHAEMS

RBER LA R QR GEPIEE
FRAEERTBETHAEMEWT

Employer’s contribution
Discretionary bonus to pension scheme Total
BERA EXRASHEMLR At

2018

2017

ERIE T+ F

Executive Directors: HiTEE
Lam Man Wah (note a) WCE (ffita) - = 1,009 2,400 - 600 8 18 1,017 3,018
Chan Ka Yee, Elsa (note b) REE (M Hb) - Z 252 600 - 150 8 18 260 768
Tsang Hok Man (note b) g2y (i) - 4 252 600 - 700 8 18 260 1,318
Meng Guangyin (note ¢) AER (e - - 2,840 < - < 12 Z 2,852 =
Liu Guoaing (note d BIEE (01ta) - - 148 - - 7 A 155
He Guangrui (note ¢) B i (Hite) - o 1,525 4 - 4 10 - 1,535 4
Meng Bo (note f) ENAL ) - - 89 — - 4 4 < 93 -
Liu Jiagiang (note f) B mas (1 5t1) - - 7 - - - 4 o 75 4
Liao Pin Tsung (note g) Bk (Iitg) - Z 1,965 L 135 s 11 4 2,111 Z
Yang Haoju (note h) B8 (Bfith) - - - < - Z - ” - Z
Yan Yongjian (note h) #K B (H3th) - - - - - - - - - -
Huang Lei (note h) a&(Mzh) - Z - Z - Z - / - Z
Independent non-executive BUisniEE:

Directors:
Fung Tat Man (note & (M iti) 49 120 - = - = - < 49 120
Cheng Kin Chung (note ) g3z (fat)) - 52 - Z - Z - /0 - 52
Chong Man Leung (note j S &X(ifd)) 49 68 - L - 2 - Z 49 68
Lo Wai Kel, Wilkie (note j BREE (M) 49 120 - 4 - - - 5 49 120
Chan, Yee Ping Michael (note k) [RBA T (7 7k) 92 - - ~ - < - 4 92 -
Tian Zhiyuan (note k) HE (Watk) 29 - - = - - - . 29 s
Hu Jinrui (note k) e s Hk) 29 s - « - A _ Z 29 Z
Total st 297 360 8,151 3,600 135 1,450 72 54 8,655 5,464

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 30 April 2018 and 2017.

EXFTRATEEZHMEIRERA
RAIPASHEEHRHEEE RS 2 B
&%

EXFRRBUFATEFTZMETIH
FHEARBEZZMS -

BE_ZT-N\ER_FT—tFWA=
TELEFE SMESFFLTBTHA
ERBEMNZENEXRENEEM
M -
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Mr. Lam Man Wah was resigned from the executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company on 28 September 2017.

Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa and Mr. Tsang Hok Man were resigned from the
executive director of the Company on 28 September 2017.

Mr. Meng Guangyin was appointed as the executive director on 7
September 2017 and chairman of the board of the Company on 28
September 2017.

Mr. Liu Guoging was appointed as the executive director on 7 September
2017 and appointed as the co-chief executive officer of the Company on
18 October 2017.

Mr. He Guangrui was appointed as the executive director on 7 September
2017 and appointed as chief executive officer on 28 September 2017. He
was redesignated as co-chief executive officer on 18 October 2017 and
was resigned from the executive director and co-chief executive officer of
the Company on 1 April 2018.

Appointed as the executive director on 7 September 2017.

Mr. Liao Pin Tsung was appointed as the executive director on 18
October 2017 and vice-chairman of the board of the Company on 18
October 2017.

Appointed as the executive director on 7 September 2017 and resigned
from the executive director of the Company on 28 September 2017.

Mr. Chong Man Leung, Mr. Fung Tat Man and Mr. Lo Wai Kei was
resigned from the non-executive director of the Company on 28
September 2017.

Mr. Cheng Kin Chung was resigned from the non-executive director of the
Company on 7 October 2016.

Mr. Chan, Yee Ping Michael, Mr. Tian Zhiyuan and Mr. Hu Jinrui was
appointed as the independent non-executive director of the Company 20
September 2017.

12.EERFETHRAEMS

(#&)
Bt -

(@

MXEEER-_Z—EFAAZ+N
BEEARBRNITEERITBABH

REBRLIREBEXEEN_F—+
FANAZTN\BBEARBANTES -

TEREESPHIR_ZE—LtENAL
BRZZ—t+tFNAZFTNBEZE
BARARTESREZTSERF -

AREREDIRN_-_T—LFNAL
BER—Z-tFTATNBEZER
RRBRITEERBFETRAR -

BRABEENNINR_ZE-EF AL
BERZZ—tFALA-TN\HAEZ®E
RATEERTHRER -BR_F—+t
FHA+TNBHAERBETREH I
RZZE-NFHA-HEBERQIAHNR
TEENBFITHRESR

RZZE—tFNALBEZERRIT
B%-

BoEaERr 22—+t +A+/\H
BZERARRARPTEERELESE
EE

RZZB-—tEtFNALBEZERRTT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FAINANCAL STARTEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o MR My 5E (1)

Forthe yearended 30 April 2018 #HZE—ZT— \FWA=+HIFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included four directors (2017: three directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2017: two) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

13. BB HFMESR

FR AEENAERSHMES D
BRENEZEE(ZE—LtF =828
2) AREHFHMZFBEHN EXME
12 HBp—F(ZZE—+F WA}
FEENHARAETZTRABNR
BHMEES ZFHMFBNT

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
B2z #H=E
—E-N\F T4
MA=+HI1E pups=y
FE FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Salaries, bonus, other allowances and He  TEAl - HMEREREY
benefits in kind ) 25 935 1,800
Retirement benefit costs IR ARAE A B A
— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme —BHEAESE 19 36
954 1,836

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands:

WIEA QA EETHHET 5% E
ZARMERSHHEER AR

Number

Nil = HK$1,000,000 Z 1,000,000/ 7T

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
BZE H=E
—E-N\F —E—+F
A=1THIE RupEs=i=
FE FE

1 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company or the chief executive of the Group or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017: nil).

AEEFALERNARAEZTRAE
EXrEZETBRAESIDEZRSHMAL
XHME ERMBEAREEIMER
SERNESIELBBAE(CE
—EF ) e
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=R UESETENVEAC )

Forthe yearended 30 April 2018 #HZEZ—ZT— \FWA=+HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREB
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the KABIBEAEAEHEERERERTIIR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: EATHIEEE

Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
BZE BHZE
—E-NE —E—+F
A=+ HIE Rapes=ys
FE FE

Loss for the year attributable to owners of KAaEBEARIEFERBE
the Company (HK$’000) (Fs& 1) (20,248) (27,691)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 2% 17 & 3 IR h0# 7 15 ¢

in issue (note) (Krat) 800,000,000 800,000,000
Basic loss per share (HK cents per share) MR EARE R (FRE) (2.53) (3.46)
Note: No diluted loss per share is presented as there was no potential ordinary Kiar A MEEEYEEED BITLEE

shares in issue for both years. WA 25| AR E RS -
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 B EZE-_T—N\FMNHA=THILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % BENSEHE
Motor
Leasehold Furniture Office vehicles
improvements and fixtures equipment  and yacht Total
HEWELE REREE BLAERE [RERERE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAT FAET FAET
COoST R A
At 1 May 2016 RZE—RF
AA—H 17,607 3,554 909 8,433 30,503
Additions RE 1,238 5 46 2 1,289
At 30 April 2017 RZE—+F
MmA=+H 18,845 3,559 955 8,433 31,792
Additions NE 1,637 19 73 1,113 2,742
Disposals el (1,234) Z £ (728) (1,962)
At 30 April 2018 RZE—N\F
MmA=+H 19,148 3,578 1,028 8,818 32,572
DEPRECIATION AND  #& & ® &
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 May 2016 RZE—RE
AAE—H 9,998 3,364 760 2,142 16,264
Provided for the year FREE 3,142 134 91 1,541 4,908
Impairment loss BRI E
recognised &8 4,362 = — =~ 4,362
At 30 April 2017 RZE—+F
mA=+H 17,502 3,498 851 3,683 25,534
Provided for the year FREE 878 34 69 1,693 2,674
Impairment loss BRI E
recognised 518 85 - — — 85
Eliminated on disposals 7 H £ i ¥ § (1,190) - - (728) (1,918)
At 30 April 2018 RZZE—N\F
MmA=+H 17,275 3,532 920 4,648 26,375
CARRYING VALUES FREE{HE
At 30 April 2018 RZZE—N\F
MA=+H 1,873 46 108 4170 6,197
At 30 April 2017 RZE—tF
mA=+H 1,343 61 104 4,750 6,258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
in o M B RIRMEE ()

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 HEZE=—ZT—N\FWNA=THILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes:

(@) During the year, the directors of the Company conducted a review of the
Group’s leasehold improvements and determined that a number of those
assets were impaired, due to physical damage and obsolescence.
Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$85,000 (2017: HK$4,362,000)
have been recognised in respect of leasehold improvements, which are
used in the Group’s retail outlets. The recoverable amounts of the relevant
assets have been determined on the basis of their value in use. The
discount rate in measuring the amount of value in use was 13% (2017:
13%) in relation to leasehold improvements.

(b) The net book value of motor vehicles and yacht of HK$4,170,000 includes
an amount of HK$1,182,000 (30 April 2017: HK$580,000) in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated,
taking into account their residual values, on a straight-line basis as

follows:

Leasehold improvements Lease terms of 2 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures Shorter of lease term or 5 years
Office equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

15. ¥ - BERZRE®

et

@ ER RKRREFHAEEZHEEME
HEETRE THRESETEAEER
VIR E R R E R MR E - Bt - &
SECHEHEMELECHERBERBRA
85,0005 JT (= & — £ F : 4,362,000/
L) REFRBEARAEBZTEE-
HEAAENAREREDEEFEAE
BET RIAE2FBHEMEREZE
AEERNHEAI% A R(ZE—+

1 13%) °

() A= KkiEM zF K E E4,170,000
BELTEERERERERABZAE
1,182,000 T(Z T —+F WM A = +

H : 580,000 7T) °

i BmERRBEEB IR R

RAEBEER REGETENT

HEMEEE HEHR2E5F
REAREKE HEHHEF

(ABmEERE)

WMRERE 3%
B R 5%
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o MR My 5E (1)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 B EZE-_T—N\FMNHA=THILFE

16. DEFERRED TAXATION 16. IE B H

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

TERHFINASBERAER R LFEHE
RZEBRERB(REFE) EERH

years: g
Accelerated Decelerated tax
tax depreciation Provision depreciation Tax losses Total
INEB BT E BE REHERE HESSE et
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 May 2016 RZE—RFE
AH—H (538) 1,043 1,419 83 2,007
Credited to profit or 5+ A8
loss 538 48 223 173 982
At 30 April and RZTE—tF
1 May 2017 MmA=+H
NAA—H — 1,091 1,642 256 2,989
Charged to profit or A8z %
loss — (742) (67) (256) (1,085)
At 30 April 2018 RZE—-N\F
mA=+H - 349 1,575 — 1,924

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$48,332,000 (2017: HK$36,799,000) available for offset
against future profits. At 30 April 2017, a deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$1,549,000 of such losses (2018:
nil). No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

The unused tax losses does not have an expiry date.

HERSEHR A&EETARK
MARRGSFN 2 KRR EE A
48,332,000/ mw( = & — £ F:
36,799,000/ L) c R ZZT —tF M A
=+ H - B5tHEHEEIE 15490005
T(ZE—NF BE)BREEHRIEE
E-EREEEANBEER  HIE
RERTHEEEEREERBEE -

APBHBEBERLEDHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FAINANCAL STRTEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i & B 75 3Rk Py 51 (18)

Forthe yearended 30 April 2018 #HZEZ—ZT— \FWA=+HIFE

17.

18.

INVENTORIES 17. &
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E2-N\F ZE—tF
A=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FAT
Merchandise for resale EER L 51,958 97,893
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost HEZZ-\FHA=FTHILFE"
of sales amounted to HK$211,409,000 (2017: HK$192,893,000), BMREAT BT AHEERAZFERK
which included provision for write-down of inventories recognised 7K £211,409,00078 (= F — £ F
of HK$1,120,000(2017: HK$6,912,000) for the year ended 30 April 192,893,000/ 7T) - 8RB EEHBARTF
2018. B HOR B 51,120,000 T (ZF — &
F 16,912,000/ 7T) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 18. [E Lg g % ;%’F;E » H B IR
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS | NFENNHIE
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\F Zg—t5F
B=+H mA=+H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEWE 5 RIA
— third parties —$5=5 4,420 2,735
— arelated company (note 32) — —EREH R A (M aE32) 6 4
4,426 2,739
Rental and utilities deposits e BEEEs 18,355 15,818
Other receivables H b fE Y TE 150 283
Bills receivables (note) FE W = (K57 ) 39,980 7
Prepayments TEA B 38,090 1,245
Total trade receivables, other receivables and  EUN & 5 Fh 18 - E & i k18
prepayments R HIBEE 101,001 20,085
Less: non-current portion B JEBEAER
— rental deposits —HERS® (1,381) (12,643)

99,620 7,442
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o MR My 5E (1)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 #HZ T — N\FWMA=Z+HI-FE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

Note: As at 30 April 2018, bills receivables amounted to HK$37,734,000 (2017:
nil) were endorsed to suppliers as prepayments for merchandises. As the
Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards because the
bills were endorsed on a full resource basis, the Group continued to
recognise these endorsed bills under bills receivable and recognise
corresponding payable in advance receipt as set out in note 21.

The trade receivables and amount due from a related company
mainly comprise receivables from credit card companies for retail
sales and wholesale customers. There was no specific credit terms
granted to those credit card companies. The receivables due from
credit card companies were usually settled within 7 days. The
Group’s credit terms granted to wholesale customers, including a
related party customer, generally ranged from 30 to 90 days from
the invoice date.

Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

18. BN B 5 IR - HE W

L

75’&@&? ﬁnlﬁua)

%%

M - R=—ZF—/\FWmA=+H" 37,734,000
BL(ZE—tF T)Z2RKREEE S
ETHER EAERZENKE A
REREE2MBREESEZ  ALEY
REFEE KRR &K ER - AN EEE R

REZECEEFZBREWERE UHER
B SE 21 88 51 2 TE W R TR 2 AR FE FE A AR
I e

FEWE ZHEREK —FEBEE AR
REFEZERREREEARRARZES
FEW B RMBER P 2 U FRIE - B
ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
B - EBRERRAR ZHRB—RRT
Ew&ﬁo$%@&%m%%ﬁ0@%
—RBEB I EP)ZEEHR BN T
R A HRE30E90H -

NHEBEEERB 2 IRER I ZE
WoIE 2B 5 K& E b e s IE & 51 40
T

30/04/2018 30/04/2017

Renminbi AR
US Dollars ETT

—E-N\EF ZE—tF
mA=+H MA=4+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
72,710 Z
1,790 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FAINANCAL STRTEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MmN EE (B)

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 HE—_ZE—N\FWNA=ZFTHLFE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice dates.

1. ERE S RIE - HhEW

L

ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁmﬁ@

&¥ME¥£WZE%§% X I R e
DITEINT

30/04/2018 30/04/2017

SESA =t
BA=+H mA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET FAET

Within 30 days 30HA 4,240 2,635
31 to 60 days 31260H 141 104
60 to 90 days 602 90H 45 -
4,426 2,739

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

As at 30 April 2018, none of the trade receivables was past due but
not impaired (30 April 2017: Nil).

R\ IORME 2 UK IA R % (81 3
VTERBNLEB Z2EBEZTLERPA

o

ol
S

RZE-N\FOA=1H HEENK
EZRBECBBERBRE(ZT -+
FMA=+H #&)-
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o MR My 5E (1)

Forthe year ended 30 April 2018 & ZE - =&

—NFOA=1THILFE

19. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group’s financial assets as at 30 April 2018
and 2017 that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing those bills
receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the
bills receivables (see note 18) and corresponding advance receipt (see
note 21). These financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

19. ERTREE

ATRAEER-_Z-\FER=

TtEMAZTEEREMNBEZEER
REEEEZFTRUREEMERTH
EEZEZMEE HRASEYEE
BRLEFRRAEZEXNRAR KRB -
HggmR e RE (R E18) kA
EEURBERWE2) Z2EER
B ZETREEDRAREZES
B TS AR I S 3R IR B S AR A BR ©

30/04/2018 30/04/2017

—E-N\F Tt F

A=+H mA=+H

HK$°000 HK$’000

THERT FHET

Carrying amount of transferred assets EEAEE@AE 37,734 —
Carrying amount of associate liabilities e EsREE (37,734) -
Net position EEAMN - —

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from
0.30% to 4.80% (2017: ranging from 0.30% to 4.80% per annum)

20 RERREEEY

RITHEHRIZ030% E4.80% 2 IWiTHH
FRR(ZZ—LF: NFFE030%

per annum. £4.80%) 5t 5 °
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-NE S
BA=+H WMA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE& T FET
Bank balances RITHE R 54,391 36,822
Cash b1 212 249
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB IR 54,603 37,071
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i & B 75 3Rk Py 51 (18)

Forthe yearended 30 April 2018 #HZEZ—ZT— \FWA=+HIFE

21. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIESAND 21. EttE8EBRE X H BEZ K
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER HihE A FIEERAE
PAYABLES

30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\EF ZE—t5F
MA=+H MA=+H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

Trade payables (note (a))

e & 5 3K I8 (Ff it ()

— third parties —8=5 18,858 9,575

— arelated company (note 32) — —MEs A e (KiE32) 3 17
18,861 9,692

Rent payable EAEE 1,269 1,574
Accrued employee benefit expenses Rt R ERAMAX 3,574 2,888
Provision for reinstatement costs (note (b)) 1E18 Ak A B 5 (FT 3% (b)) 1,796 1,776
Provision for onerous operating leases (note (c)) & & & & & B (K13 (c)) 2,115 8,598
Other accruals and payables HihfEst & A REMKIE 4,474 676
Advance receipt TEUSRIR 67,797 =
99,886 25,104

Less: non-current portion R0 FEBNHR AL (793) (1,653)
Current portion BIHAEE 9 99,093 23,451
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Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 #HZ T — N\FWMA=Z+HI-FE

21. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

As at 30 April 2018, the carrying amounts of trade payables,
provisions and other payables approximated to their fair values.
Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set

L

wEBEEH BEZR
fib P& S TR IE B )

RZZE-N\FOA=1tH E5EN
RE BEREGENKECKREE
HERNFEMEAE NHBEEER

DEEEB U2 EEIBEZES R E

out below: T RIBF ST -
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\EF —ZE— %
mAE=+H MA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TATT
Renminbi AR 74,368 —
Notes: Wi
(a) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based on (@) REBEEN B FEMNRERE D
the due date. W e
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—EB-N\fF ZE—+F
B=t+H MmA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET
Within 30 days 308K 18,720 9,124
31 10 60 days 31260H - 435
Over 61 days HiEe1 H 141 33

18,861 9,592




E-BEBRZERERAT —FT-N\FEH
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UNSEUESETEEEAC )

Fortheyearended 30 April 2018 HE—_ZE—N\FWNA=ZFTHLFE

21. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIESAND 21. H#ttB8E Rt HB 2K
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER HESRERE @
PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Movements in the Group’s provision for reinstatement costs are as

st < (&)

b) AEEZEEXRABEEESHNOT

follows:
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\F e
B=t+H MmA=+H
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FHET
At beginning of the year F1) 1,776 1,776
Additional provision during the year FAEINEE 399 7
Settlements/reversals during the year FREN D (379) Z
At end of the year FR 1,796 1,776
The provision for onerous operating leases represents the anticipated (© EERKLEHEREREEERETZEE

unavoidable costs for fulfilling the onerous non-cancellable lease
agreements. The lease agreements were entered into ranging from 1
month to 3 years, the last of which fall due in 2 April 2021. The provision
amount would be reduced upon the payment of the remaining rental

charges.

Movements in the Group’s provision for onerous operating leases are as

TR EHEERZESE 2 TR # %K
KeBAUZHEBAEAFHNF1ER
E3F BRE-HEEEBIHIN T
—FNA-—HEE - BESEENIN

RpHeBRRRD -

AEEZEEREHEREZHNT

follows:
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
A=+H mA=+8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
At beginning of the year F4) 8,598 6,323
Provision during the year FREAE 321 6,237
Release of provision upon payment TS EPEEREE
of rental charges (6,804) (3,962)
At end of the year FXR 2,115 8,598
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SRR E

Forthe year ended 30 April 2018 & ZE - =&

()

—NFOA=1THILFE

22, BANK LOANS 22 RITER
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E2-N\EF T F
MA=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank loans, repayable within one year and HA—FNEELHBILEEL
contain a repayable on demand clause, EER - B|IKE - B

unsecured, with effective interest rate of FEREAEZI%(ZE—LF

3.3% (2017: 2.7%) per annum 2.7%) ZRITE R 5,806 15,575

23

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans were denominated
in HK$ and unsecured and approximated to their fair values. The
applicable interest rates of the respective bank loans are range
from Hongkong InterBank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 2.15% to
2.65%.

As at 30 April 2018, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
HK$23,500,000 (2017: HK$76,120,000) for overdrafts and loans.
Unused facilities as at the same date were HK$17,694,000 (2017:
HK$60,545,000). The banking facilities were granted to the
subsidiaries of the Group and were subject to annual review and
guaranteed by unlimited guarantees from the Company and certain

AEERTERZEEERETE
MEAR WEAEAQNFERE - FH
RITERZERBNNERBBRITAE
KETEERTRAERE] IN2.15%
£2.65% 1% o

RZZ-N\EWA=Z+H £A4%H
EEBEYRERZBITMERSE
£23,500,000/ (= T — £ F:
76,120,000 7t ) c A B 2 K & A &
& /17,694,0008 (=& — £ F .
mmmm%m>ﬁﬁﬂéﬂﬁ%$

subsidiaries of the Group. EEBEKERR  WEE L 17 i F % FEJ &

Zﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ? o

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 23. mi&EfHE=E
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
MA=+H MA=+H
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#& T FET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DMERFHA S

Current liabilities neaE 485 236
Non-current liabilities ERHAEB 342 202
827 438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
=R UESETELEAC )

23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain furniture and fixtures and
two motor vehicles under finance leases. The average lease term is
3 years (2017: 3 years). Interest rates underlying all obligations
under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates ranging
from 2.90% to 3.09% (2017: 2.90%) per annum.

2. mEHEETwW

Forthe yearended 30 April 2018 #HZEZ—ZT— \FWA=+HIFE

REBEHEHEETRAE KER
M TENAEE 2BER - FHHEE
HA=F(ZF—tF:=F) Hp
EREHERTRBZMNEERERE

AEHBEHET FAENF290%E
3.09% T E (=T —+ 4 :2.90%) °

Finance lease liabilities mEHESE
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
BA=+H mA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum MmEHEBESE —KEHEE
lease payments (N
Within one year —FK 503 245
Within a period more than one year but not ZR—FETBAMTE 2 BHE
more than two years 298 204
Within a period more than two years but not ~ ZRAMFEE T BB =F 2 B
more than three years 50 —
851 449
Future finance charges on finance lease BMEHEBBEARARMEER
liabilities (24) (11)
Present value of finance lease liabilities MmEHEBERE 827 438
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 W 12EARNEIREE 2
months (shown under current liabilities) cRE(ERBABET
5 7R) 485 236
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R1I2E A BEBEE 25 342 202
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For the year ended 30 April 2018 EHZE —=

24,

25.

—NFENA=THILFE

SHARE CAPITAL 24. X 7
Number of
shares  Share capital
BHEB [N
'000 HK$’000
T & FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEOIE L B
Authorised ETE
At 30 April 2017 and 30 April 2018 RZE—EFMNA=+HK
—E-\FWEA=TH 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 30 April 2017 and 30 April 2018 RZEBE—+FMNBE=+EE
—E-NFWUA=1H 800,000 8,000
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS BIREREE

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs or
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The qualifying employees in the PRC of the Group are members of
a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$1,135,000
(2017: HK$1,199,000) represent contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

E#H G 8

AEBERBEEMBAREREBERY

MEERAESHE B ZEERE

AARGZESHE BAKEZE

ENFRE -ASEEARMEBET

%-EMIZS%‘JZ % %1,50078 7T A &t & f#
- iR B IR AR K o

AEERTEZEEREEHZNT
BB ESRELBRERKE
B -AKBARBEIFMAAZFE

e Bl E R AR & A B SR LA A AR R
P s E - A AR E EZERE 5
SR EREREEIHN -

REZPERZ2ERHEE A
1,135,000 7t( — g A ¢
1,199,000/ 7T) - EAXEER A S

IR At 8l S 2 ke

it
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26.

27.

28.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option schemes

Pursuant to the board resolution passed on 4 January 2018, the
Board resolved to grant 80,000,000 share options (the “Share
Option Plan”) in total to employees and business associates of the
Company (the “Grantees”, and each a “Grantee”), subject to
acceptance of the Grantees, to subscribe for a total of 80,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company.
The Share Option Plan is approved by the Shareholders by way of
poll at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 January 2018.

As the share options were not successfully granted in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, no
share options were granted and outstanding as at 30 April 2018.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 April 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any material
capital commitments.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

26.

27.

28.

R ARR S

UmEE 2B REsE

RER-_F-N\F-FENARBZ
EFECREBR EFERRAARN
80,000,00017 & A # ([ #8 B 4 51 &1 1)
TARBIZEBEREBBHTAEK
AN FARAZEWR AIRBAR
&) I& 78§ & $£80,000,000 1% & i H &
OO T Z BB - RER TN
F-AZ+RERBIZERREIKRE
ERBRERRT A LB RS -

A 7 B A M X R AR B B AR A B 2 15
REMEERD R L MR =ZF—\F
MAZTHMEBEER L REARTTER
P HE o

BAREE

RZE-—NER-ZZE—F+FEWNA=+
B AEEMETEKERRE-

Minimum lease payments paid and recognised € &1 2 - B #3245 B %

as an expense under operating leases during
the year

ZRBEMERERENK

KEHE

KEBAEAHEA
Year ended Year ended
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
8= BHZE
—E-NE —E—+tF
MA=+HI1E Rept=N
FE FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
52,125 50,577
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28.

29.

OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

28.

KREHEE @

AKEBAEAEA@®

RREPR AEERBETAIMEZ
KeENEREREMNMZRERENR
EEWT

30/04/2018 30/04/2017

—E-NE —E—+tF

BA=+H MmA=+H

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FET

Within one year —F R 22,324 52,933
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFERAF(ZHEMT) 7,756 7
30,080 52,933

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group
for retail outlets and office premises. The majority of lease
agreements are non-cancellable with lease terms between 1 and 3
years. Some lease agreements are cancellable with a notice period
of 3 to 6 months.

The above lease commitments do not include commitments for
additional rentals payable, if any, when revenue of individual retail
outlet exceeds a pre-determined level as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to owners of the Company through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans disclosed in note 22, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated profits/losses and
other reserves.

29.

REBENFTEAKERTEE R
NREMERNZEES AMBHLBEER
BETAHE PN T —ZE=%F-
BorMEHZEAEBGE T =2/ EA
Z AT LAY o

PRBEAEY AEEEAEEENT
EENRRBEBEKRFRELENRE
SMENEE (MA)NAE RAZE
EREEEEHBEIHE SR -

EXEBEE

AEENEAEREREBRASEZ
EROEFELZE REEBELE

BRERERBARBEA NG KR
RKEHF - AEEZBEBRBEEEFRE

AEBZEAGBERABEFE &
hEERME2WEZRITENR B
ERBECEHFBYFERARNRAEEA
FEiGfEas  MARBIHEA ARMAERS
BEEHETEA  RetEM/HE R
HAGE o
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with the
share capital and bank loans. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the issue of new shares, new debts or the
redemption of existing debts.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

30a. Categories of Financial Instruments

Financial assets

20. EXEBEE @

ARBEETHRIEAERE - AR
AEEKERIBEPEREAK
ARBEZERARRITERBBZ
R REEBREARAESFT 22
&OBBBRTHR MEEHFXED
REEBRFEEBERERE-

30, T A

a. €W T B 27
TREE

30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\E el
B=+H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T FET
Loans and receivables BN e W R IE
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 N EH MW FRIE 62,911 18,840
— Cash and cash equivalents —BERINESZEEY 54,603 37,071
117,514 55,911
Financial liabilities cRERE
30/04/2018 30/04/2017
—E-N\E ZESAE
B=+H mA=+H
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REBHEK AR SR EE
— Bank loans —RITEXK 5,806 15,575
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R HEMERNFIE 23,299 11,842
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEEAE 827 438
29,932 27,855
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. £ml T B )

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, finance lease liabilities and bank loans. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, and bank loans. It is the
Group’s policy to keep a portion of its financial assets and
financial liabilities at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and HIBOR arising from the Group’s
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s variable-rate
bank balances and bank loans. The analysis is prepared
assuming the variable-rate bank balance and bank loans
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50-basis point on bank
loans(2017: 50-basis point) and 10-basis point on bank
balances(2017: 10-basis point) increase or decrease in the
interest rates is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest risk internally to key management personal and
represent the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

30b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Wb. HEEBEEEEERK
Policies R

AEBZIESRTABREESD
REMEBWKZR ReERREEHE
MBS REMENTE BE
HEBBRRITER ZFZ TR
THEHZFHBRBENBBME - %
FERMTAZHBRREEMS
Bk (R =@ - 55 R R &R
BESRER - A BT SRR
ZHERBERTIX - EEEBEER
BRI ZE R - DARER BB I 2
HEREUE E T

A = [ b
AEBRZFBN KA B ZRTT
EHLBTERHEBGRSREN
KRR AEEZBRRBEFH
BERFAE-—AFNEREERSE
AR AR FEFRERRE
ERE-AKBZRERENEK
B ERERRAKENAB T
BZEREEZRITERREE
RITAERE 2N EKE -

THSREDT IR EAZAE
BZZEHAET B ZRITE S
NMRITE R 2 F R R 155N E
FEoABBAIMBRARIEHERE
BAZIETEMNEF B ZRITE
B RBTERREFRNAREAM
RE - AEERNLEEZERA
BIER 2 RITERF KRB TR
Fs0E R (ZZF —+F : 5016
EE)RIBITEBTIEBI0EE
B(—ZT—tF 10@EEZ) L7
RERAEE, HTRKREERE
HAEREEAESEATE T
fih e
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

30b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

If the interest rate on bank balances had been 10 basis point
(2017: 10 basis point) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss post tax for the year
would have decreased/increased by approximately

HK$45,000 (2017: HK$31,000).

If the interest rate on bank loans had been 50 basis point (2017:
50 basis point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss post tax for the year would have
increased/decreased by approximately HK$24,000 (2017:

HK$65,000).

Credit risk

As at 30 April 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

30. €@t T A @)
b. I EREEBERK

e )
F) = [ Bz (48)

W RIT4E SR FI E EF R BR101E
A (T —tF 10@AEZ) -
MATEEMESREFTE AR
SEFRAZHRBEEBEERD,
#h0 4945,0000 (= & — &
131,000 7T) °

W R 1T ERF K EF T B501E
ﬂ%ﬁ(ﬁ —+F 50 EE)
mATE E i EH s AE B
EEFRZHBFHEEBEEEEN
BV #724,0000 T( = B — +
£ 65,0005 7T) °

FER

n= f—AEmﬂ:+E NS
EEBESAZEERRBKERE
AUBRRRINESEBREH
BEZEREE WXBHHEER
NEML FHERARBERALE
EZ AL -

EEREEERR AEEE
BECZR—XEK ZEETE
SERBE EEHZREMER
B BRORNBETSHED
BEER - W KREBERS
HREHNEHRBINESEHNHA
Yool & 78 - DAREGR E i AT U [al
TRFLRAREBE - EEH
B AEEEERRAKRENE
B ERERE -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. £ml T B )

b. ¥ HEEMEEBRERK

30b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables are due from regular institutional customers
with an appropriate financial strength. The Group did not
experience any significant defaults by the debtors.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high reputation in the Hong
Kong and Mainland.

As at 30 April 2018, the Group’s bank balances deposited in
the major five banks in the Hong Kong and Mainland
accounted for 96.25% (2017: 100%) cash and cash
equivalents of the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$20,248,000 and bore accumulated losses of
HK$39,798,000. As at 30 April 2018, the Group had total
banking facilities of approximately HK$23,500,000, of which
approximately HK$5,806,000 were drawn down as bank
borrowings. The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group has sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern.

& (@)

FEER K @)
ERBSHEARKESRE S
@fﬂ%%ﬁ%%gﬁ AEE

mIC TS A M A E KB
m%

nBETZEERRAR  TiA
RARZEBRXHTREBRALEA
BREFEBZRT-

RZZE—NFWMA=Z+H K&
EREBLRALEMRAS B
BEBROBRTERGAERR S
MREeEEBEMH LB A96.25%
—+F 1 100%) °

MEE & E

REERDESARE  AKE
EERIKRENACFEDSE
FEEEEBRRENRASEN
EGEERHESLREREN
ERBRFENKT -EHESE
gﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁ%hﬁ I W 1R

BREL -

FR AEBELEEBIEBIFE
20,248,000/ ;- R i E B A
39,798,000 L e R =—F — \ &
MABE=Z+H AEEBEZIRITH
B #) 523,500,000 7T 0 HH 4
5,806,00037% 7L B IR X & R1T1E
Ko ARAREBAFFHAEER
CHEARVBEREBEZRER
ERN CDREZELASEBHRZZ
mEBEEARE AR EAHR
BRR o
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

30b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

30. & T A
b. HEBEREEBERK

e )

RENE € E B (@)
TREFAEMIEFTESREE
M TANBEA DN - LRI
A EkAREBMN KNSR BN
SRHEBAUEBRSHERE -
EHE BEAREREEER
MBTERIAREBHRR
TR BT 25 Al REIB IBITE K
SHER - HIETEeRERE
WEBMBE DN B ERTHEE
B Him 5 -

TREIMERAEHRERE -
WA B RERFEME - BIREE
RERBMEMRZANZHRE
Hj o]
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

30b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

30. €@t T A @)

. B HERBEEEBERK

& (@)

Liquidity risk (Continued) MEE S R K )
More than
Lessthan 3 months to Over Undiscounted Carrying
Financial liabilities sRERE Ondemand 3 months 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
3EANRLE KREEER
REXR 2LH3EA Z15 10 E HemE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET FTET FTHEI TET TET
As at 30 April 2018 R-B-N\%
B=+H
Trade payables and other & 5 J& {4 R IE I
payables H n fE TR IE - 23,299 - - 23,299 23,299
Bank loans at weighted ~ #& hl & F 15 FI &
average interest rate of  3.30% =t 2. &)
3.30% RITEMN 5,840 - - - 5,840 5,806
Finance lease liabilities BEHEERE - 136 367 348 851 827
5,840 23,435 367 348 29,990 29,932
As at 30 April 2017 R-ZB—+tHF
mA=+H
Trade payables and other & 5 J& -+t /1B I
payables H A FE 1 3B 7 11,842 4 Z 11,842 11,842
Bank loans at weighted % #4597 &
average interest rate of ~ 2.70% it £ H)
2.70% BITEXK 15,630 — - 4 15,630 15,575
Finance lease liabilities BMEHREER — 61 184 204 449 438
15,630 11,903 184 204 27,921 27,855
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included ﬂ EERBERERIGEXHRTE
in the “on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. HEFA EXEIBAR SR ESK
As at 30 April 2018, the aggregate undiscounted principal 2 EERAERR RN _ZFE—N\FK
amounts of these bank loans amounted to HK$5,806,000 B=+H #ZZHETERZ KM
(2017: HK$15,575,000). Taking into account the Group’s I 7K 4 48 58 /55,806,000 T (=
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is T — 115,575,000/ L) © #&

probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The table below analyses
the Group’s bank loans into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end of reporting period
to the contractual maturity date.

ERASE ZHBMR  EFR
BRI IR S TEERER
BRzHEE - TRIEBEBEHRDS
HARZAHDNEHB 25T 8-
LI EAR H A ER 2
IRITEFCETOMN -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

30b. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

30. €@t T A @)

b. I EREEBERK
E (#)

Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & &b (@)
Maturity Analysis — Bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments
FHBON - AEARERBERMTAREABERNRITER
Less than 1-2 2-5 Over Undiscounted  Carrying
1 year years years 5 year cash flows amount
REEH
D1EF 182F 285% B5FB L ReERE AREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHIT FHEIT FHIT FHT FHT FHT
30 April 2018 —E-N\EF
mMA=+H 5,840 — — - 5,840 5,806
30 April 2017 —ZE—+tHF
MA=+H 15,630 = - < 15,630 15,575

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

31.

W FBAEH A2 B RS
REEZFEEHAR A LEXHH
ERMETESHARIDFIETAY
SEBERED -

METHELENEBYER

TERHIAKBRELZDELE AR
HEEHE BERASMIERSES-
RERDELECABEREAKSEAH
BeREXTEATRERDBE/K
ARBREREBEOERBREETDHE
EZHReREZEE
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31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

BML.REEHELENREHK

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (&)
(Continued)
Obligations
Interest under
Payable finance lease Bank loans Total
MEHE
PR B BE RITEX et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FET FET
(note 23) (note 22)

(Htat23) (Ktat22)

At 1 May 2017 RZE—+FHHA—H — 438 15,575 16,013
Financing cash flows MEFRSTE (572) (465) (9,769) (10,806)
Non-cash changes: JEIR & H)
Finance costs Bb & Bk AR 572 & Z 572
Inception of new finance FREHERA
leases — 854 = 854
At 30 April 2018 R=Z— \FMAZ+H - 827 5,806 6,633

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
parties/companies were related parties that had transactions or
balances with the Group during years presented:

Name of the related party Relationship with the Group

N.EHRAIRS

ARAEBERR THAL/ RAR
BRENFEAEASEETR SN
152 1tL FR] /B 45 BR Y B

BB LS 28 HEASENBERE

Company A Significantly influenced by a related party of the Company (note (a))
AAEIA RARNA —HBE T ERTE (W ()

Company B Significantly influenced by a related party of the Company (note (a))
A 7B RARNB—H@B T ERTE (K it(a)

Company C Under common control of the controlling shareholders (note (b))

~AC R R A RS (M2 D)
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a): the related parties represents the entities which are controlled by directors
of the Company. The abovementioned entities do not constitute related
parties of the Company following the resignation of certain directors after
28 September 2017.

(b):  the entity constitute related party of the Company upon the change of
ultimate controlling shareholder set out in note 1.

(a) During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

32. BHERS @)
et -

@: BMITEIXAAREEZHZERE-
MERE_FT-LtFALAC -H\EIE"
ETESHERLTHBRARA ZH

ok
9p

(o): MMFFAFTE  REBERRREZEE
BRARAIBE T 2B -

(@) &m AeEEEEFETUT
25

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Purchase from Company B MR a) BT R 45 138
Sales to Company A MAEAEITIHE 154 266
Commission income from Company C B RaCHEME WA 1,357 =
The following balances were outstanding at the end of the TH &SRR HER RS AEE
reporting period:
Amount due from/(to) related parties FEW (FEA) BB 5 Fh 1B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Amount due from Company A FEU R RIARIFRIB 6 4
Amount due to Company B BT R RIBRFRIA Q) (17)

Prepayments to Company C

WAFCE M MENRE

9,971 7

Receivables and payables from/(to) the above related parties
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amount due from Company A was neither past due nor
impaired. The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/(to)
related parties approximated to their fair values and are
denominated in HK$.

e/ (FE ) Lt BE Bt 75 &9 & U 3% B
RENFREARERT 2B MAR
EREE - BU A FAR KA H KA
HI 7R R OBUE o B UL (FE ) BB 75 3K
EHNREEEE A FERERAET
FHE -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32.
(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

BELT RS @

b) EEEBEAEFHMH

EEREMEEZEEABFAN

Foan T

2018 2017
—EF-N\F —TtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FET

Salaries, bonus, other allowances and e JEAL - HAMOEBE R
benefits in kind BV = 8,583 7,104

Retirement benefit costs RAREFI K A

— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme —BEMEATEEE 72 108
8,655 7,212

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

EENTEEBEAEBNHFENIA
FMEZBEeRBEBEAXERT

BB R o
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

B.ARAETEWMBAAFE

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

Place and date of

Particulars of issued
share capital/

ARBARBEMRZ ETZH B R A

BHIRAE e

Principal activities and place
of operation

ITEXBREBHE

Name incorporation/establishment registered capital Equity interest held
BRITRE
% AR HR A S AMELZFE i 5 I R
2018 2017
=LV — T+ F
Directly held
HEERE
Tic Tac International Company British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Us$2 100% 100%
Limited 1July 2014
HERBEERAR RBRURES - 2ETT
ZZ-NE+A—-H
POI Limited BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1 100% ~
POI Limited RBRAE —2—tF 1XTT
TZAZthHE
Indirectly held
MERA
City Great Limited Hong Kong, 25 January 2007 HK$1 100% 100%
WEARRR B —EZ+E—-RA-+AA 18T
Jenus Top International Limited Hong Kong, 30 June 2004 HK$300,000 100% 100%
HEEBRERDA EH ZEENESA=1H 300,000 7T
Sun Step Asia Limited Hong Kong, 17 June 2006 HK$500,000 100% 100%
BESNERAR BB ZZEXEANATLA 500,000 7T
Tic Tac Time Company Limited Hong Kong, 28 July 1997 HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
HEEZRERAA BE —NAWNEFLAZHAR 3,000,0007% 7T
Treasure Ascent International Limited  Hong Kong, 22 October 2008 HK$500,000 100% 100%
ESEEERRA B ZZTN\FE+AZFTZH 500,000/ 7T
Prosper One Industrial Investment BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1 100% —
Prosper One Industrial Investment REEXES 17T
—E2—+F+ZRZ+ AR
Prosper One Commerce Investment ~ BVI, 29 December 2017 US$1 100% —
Prosper One Commerce Investment  HBE S - 13T

—E—+tF+=ZRA=+NB

Investment holding in Hong
Kong
RERREREER

Investment holding in Hong
Kong
REBREREER

Wholesale of watches in Hong
Kong
REBREmRE

Retail of watches in Hong Kong

REBZTERE

Wholesale of watches in Hong
Kong
REBIERE

Retail of watches in Hong Kong

REBZTERE

Retalil of watches in Hong Kong

REEZTERE

Investment holding in Hong
Kong
REBREREER

Investment holding in Hong
Kong
REBRFHREER
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL B.AEARTFETEHMBRAAFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place and date of

Particulars of issued
share capital/

(&)

Principal activities and place

Name incorporation/establishment registered capital Equity interest held of operation
BRTRE/
8 MR/ R K A S HMERZFHE Fi 5 B TEEBREELH
2018 2017
TE-\F bl
Prosper One Eco-Technology Hong Kong, 23 February 2017 HK$10,000 100% — Investment holding in Hong
Kong
E-REMEAERAA B ZE-tFZRAZ+=H 10,0007 7T REBREREER
Prosper One Fertilizer Limited Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HK$1 100% — Investment holding in Hong
Kong
E-REBRAA ¥ _ZT—+tF+ZAZ+ IR 18T REBREFREER
Prosper One Resources Commerce  Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HK$1 100% — Investment holding in Hong
Limited Kong
E-BREZSERRA R ZE—+E+ZAZt+NH 18T REBREREER
Prosper One Well Rich Commerce Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 HK$1 100% — Trading of public consumption
Limited products in Hong Kong
E-ENESERRA R ZE—tE+ZRAZ+NH 18T REBEBEAREEM
R E—BRREMEERAF PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% — Trading of fertilizers products in
29 January 2018 PRC
WERE-BRREEERAA FE - BRAR 50,000,0007% 7T RPBEBEERENER
ZE-N\E—-AZ+NnAH
LWRE-EERBAERAR PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% — Trading of fertilizers products in
29 January 2018 PRC
WRE-EEMRAERRAAF TR BRAE 50,000,000 7T RPYBEEEENER
—ZE-N\F-A=Z+NH
WHRERE—LIRHMBRAF PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% — Trading of fertilizers products in
29 January 2018 PRC
WRE—(tITREERDA HE - BRAA 50,000,000 7T RHEEBEERRER
ZE2-N\E-AZTAhH
LRE—BERESHERLA PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% — Trading of fertilizers products in
29 January 2018 PRC
LRE-EEESERAT TR BRAR 50,000,000/ 7T KB EERHE®
ZZ-N\E-AZ+NhH
EfE—RHESAERRQA PRC, limited liability HK$50,000,000 100% — Trading of public consumption
29 January 2018 products in PRC
EfE-—ZHESERAR TR BRAF 50,000,0007% 7T RHBEEAREER

—F-AF-RZthA
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

The Group decided to expand its operation scope by commencing
the business of sale and trade of high-end biological fertilizers,
fertilizers raw materials and related fertilizers products and public
consumption products after the change of ultimate controlling
shareholders set out in note 1. The new subsidiaries as stated
above were established in Hong Kong, BVI and the PRC to
commence related new business thereafter.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at
30 April 2018 and 2017 or at any time during both years.

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i) Issue of Convertible Notes (definitions are
set out in the announcement of the
Company published on 31 May 2018)

On 31 May 2018, the Company entered into a Subscription
Agreement with the Subscriber, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the Subscriber
conditionally agreed to subscribe Convertible Notes in an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$80,000,000. Each
Note entitles the Noteholder to convert the Note into New
Shares at any time during the Conversion Period at the
Conversion Price, provided that no Conversion Right may be
exercised at a Conversion Price lower than the Floor Price
(which is subject to adjustments).

On 4 July 2018, the Company and the Subscriber entered
into a second amendment agreement, pursuant to which the
Company and the Subscriber agree that the Relevant
Adjustment Event is deleted in its entirety.

The Subscription Agreement and the transactions
contemplated under it have been approved in the
extraordinary general meeting convened on 26 July 2018.

33.

34.

RKRAREEMBARFHE
(40

PP S R R REE
B AEERTEEFREENESR
= o AR BERHR B N AR BE AE K
EmARARBEBEMER BRE
REegE- L zHFHBARERE

RBERESENBPBEKL AR
1R R E -

ARREERR ERINFZART
MEBRRATEREAEHE ZEENRE
ENBEBE-ARAEERR HIE
B RRZHIERERFBEARTIT
£ 8®ATEL-

BEMNBRAANR-_ZE-NFR_T—

TtEMA=TBERMESEERNEM
BEAEEAREEZEBES -

BERREE

() BTABRKREE(BRH
E’\\\ZIK’D\_]EA Z2-N\F
E)ﬁ e = s 1 - =7

RZE—NEFRA=Z+—H X«
REEREBATLRERZ B
b ARABBREREZETRR
BAEKHGRERERASBE
7~ 18 %% 80,000,000 JT 2 7] # i
ZR-ZREZBEETERFEAE
F - AT R IR B BE R IR R R (B
EEEEBBTRG  ERAR
BREE (A FHAR) 2 BRET
1 AR A o

RZE-NELANHE KA A
B2 2R %}\ETZ%: GREEARAE
Bt ARR RREARE MR
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REBEREETRETZRS
BER-ZE—NFELA=-1+/,"HA
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(ii)

Memorandum of Understanding in relation
to a Possible Investment and Potential
New Business (definitions are set out in
the announcement of the Company
published on 13 June 2018)

On 13 June 2018, the Company entered into the
Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”) with Lithium
Chile Inc. (“LC”) in relation to the Equity Investment and the
Norte Program. The MOU contemplates: (1) the Equity
Investment of CDN$1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$6,000,000)
in the LC shares by the Company; (2) an annual financial
commitment of CDN$1,000,000 from the Company to the
Norte Program with a term of three years which is made in
exchange for potential working interests of Pintadas Nortes.
The MOU serves as a basis for entering into the Joint Venture
Agreement for concluding the transactions under the MOU.
The MOU is terminable by either LC or the Company if (i) the
Joint Venture Agreement is not entered into by 31 December
2018; (i) the terminating party is not prepared to complete
the transactions as a result of its due diligence; or (i) approval
from the TSX Venture Exchange or other regulatory authorities
is not received before 31 December 2018. If the Joint Venture
Agreement is not entered into other than the above
circumstances, the Company will pay to LC a break fee of
CDN$250,000 (approximately HK$1,520,000).

The above mentioned MOU does not constitute a legally
binding commitment on any of the parties to the MOU in
relation to transactions as contemplated under the MOU.

()
»
£

L
_—

FEHREEm@m
EBRUEREREREY
EBBRBEIGRESRE
(BEHIRAATRZ
E-NEXAB+=87
BR2NE)

RZZE—N\FRXA+=ZH &
/A &l Ed Lithium Chile Inc. ([LC)
AINRBRETY RAEBER

N,

# 1% & K Nortest & o & %
88 E  (1)A 2 A RLCE

2 P& # 3% & 41,000,000 00 7T (48
% 76,000,000/ 7T ) : QA & A
Norterst 8| 2 FE B & E A
1,000,000 07T © B HA =4 » LAf@
# BY Pintadas Nortes 7 /% & 48 &
xR ETEALEER
HIEHEE AMERTRER
BRETZR G - MBELENTE
T ETE]ALCHK AR
IR — TR EWEL

ARZE-NFE+-_HA=+—H
BT ()& IE— AT ERA

HEBESMEMR S skl
KRRZE-NF+ZRB=+—
B 2 B U B TSX Venture Exchange
S EMEERE 2 E - HEE
& B bt A SN R M 30 R R
Y AARERALCENEN
250,000 7T (471,520,000 7T.)

b R R A R B T K B AR R
BSHRBETRETR S REE
SEEM— A REROR D ZE

= o
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

35. AR AP BHARR K HE R

ARBRBERRZBBEARAAKRE

Company at the end of the reporting period includes: s
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THE T FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries RB AR Z =
— investment in a subsidiary —RBRAZ’E 21,447 66,888
— amounts due from subsidiaries —ERKB AR ZRIE 84,780 95,887
106,227 162,775
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 45 '
Rental deposits HEZS 10 Z
106,282 162,775
Current assets MBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERFKIE 2,365 7
Cash and cash equivalents BE MRS EEBY 1,266 8,899
3,631 8,899
Total assets BEE 109,913 171,674
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. KRAFMBERRARBEEE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
Information about the statement of financial position of the KRNI BERRZHBERIKRE
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: (Continued) £ ()
2018 2017
—E2-N\F ZE—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT
Capital and reserves BARKFEE
Share capital (=N 8,000 8,000
Reserves f# 18 98,302 163,348
Total equity B R 106,302 171,348
Current liabilities nEBE
Accruals and other payables FEET B B K H b e 1 508 3,611 326
Total liabilities BEEE 3,611 326
Total equity and liabilities BREZNAE 109,913 171,674
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

35. A8 A 7] B % AR R K fi 4 =R

]

(&)

Movement in the Company’s reserves KA Zi#HESE
Share Capital Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BiRE EAGHE HtEE it EE PR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAT FAT FAT
Balance at 1 May 2016 A =& — <4
A A — Bz 118,368 66,887 — (21,220) 164,035
Total comprehensive 2 HB X &%
expense
Loss for the year FREE 2 & & (687) (687)
Balance at 30 April RZT—+tF
2017 and 1 May WMA=+HE
2017 —EZ—tFHA
—Hz#E 118,368 66,887 — (21,907) 163,348
Total comprehensive 2 HB X &%
expense
Loss for the year FAEE % & ~ (59,358) (59,358)
Deemed contribution &5 fE YK B A 7
arising from imputed 2 RIEZ HE
interest on amounts FEBEEZBIE
due from subsidiaries T & 4 & (5,688) = (5,688)
Balance at 30 April RZTE—)N\F
2018 mA=+H2
g 118,368 66,887 (5,688) (81,265) 98,302
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O FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMEEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for AEEBER AV B FENEEUNNLEE

the last five financial years is set out below: LRBEZHBEHNGAT
RESULT E 4
Year ended 30 April
BENAZ=t+RLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

ZE-NF ZE-1F ZE-RF ZZT—+F R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTEL FEL TEL FAET TRRT

Revenue e 446,913 449,955 321,322 283,211 315,501
Cost of sales HEKA (284,295)  (285,780)  (206,434)  (192,893) (211,409)
Gross profit E ] 162,618 157,175 114,888 90,318 104,092
Other income (expenses) Hi A (R ) 48 (407) (489) 9 53
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEHAAK (106,784) (97,663) (105,411) (102,817) (92,349)
Administrative expenses THRAY (9,997) (30,732) (20,479) (15,627) (26,902)
Operating profit (loss) RewR (BE) 45,885 28,373 (11,491) (28,117) (15,106)
Finance costs BERA (361) (555) (667) (441) (572)
Profit (loss) before income tax BRATEBAER (BB) 45,524 27,818 (12,158) (28,558) (15,678)
Income tax (expense) credit MER(EDER (7,661) (7,799) (491) 867 (4,570)
Profit (loss) for the year EERAN(ER) 37,863 20,023 (12,649) (27,691) (20,248)
Other comprehensive expense H2EEX = < . & (17)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FE2HEWE (BX)4EH
for the year 37,863 20,023 (12,649) (27,691) (20,265)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AT A+ {5 2 H b %
for the year attributable to: (BX) 5.
Owners of the Company ADREEA 34,402 16,170 (12,649) (27,691) (20,265)
Non-controlling interests R 3,461 3,853 & - -
37,863 20,023 (12,649) (27,691) (20,265)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
For the year ended 30 April
BENA=+AHLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

—E-UF —T-nfF ZF-RF 245 ket
HK$000  HK$O00 ~ HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THTL TAT TAT TET TR

Total assets BEE 122,903 173,738 203,025 172,096 217,579
Total liabilities BEE (41,946)  (128,853) (44,422) (41,184) (106,932)

Total equity BRER 80,957 44,885 158,603 130,912 110,647
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